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Save Money. Live Better.
Walmart U.S.: 3,708 Units

Sam’s Club: $46.7 billion in net sales

Sam’s Club: 596 U.S. Clubs

Walmart International: $100.1 billion in net sales

Walmart International: 4,112 Units
Argentina: 43
Brazil: 434
Canada: 317
Chile: 252
China: 279
Costa Rica: 170
El Salvador: 77
Guatemala: 164
Honduras: 53
India: 1
Japan: 371
Mexico: 1,469
Nicaragua: 55
Puerto Rico: 56*
United Kingdom: 371

Worldwide total: $405 billion in net sales

Sales for the year ended January 31, 2010

Unit count as of January 31, 2010
* Effective February 1, 2010, Walmart stores
and Sam’s Clubs in Puerto Rico became a
part of their respective U.S. segments.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
702 S.W. 8th Street
Bentonville, Arkansas 72716 USA
479-273-4000
walmartstores.com
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Total Units Worldwide: 8,416

We save people money
so they can live better.

Walmart

Walmart U.S.: $258.2 billion in net sales

Online Reports Drive Sustainability Commitments

Financial Highlights
Fiscal Year Ended January 31,
(In billions, except per share data)

Net sales(1)

2010
$405.0

Net sales increase

1.0%

Operating income

2009
$401.1
7.3%

$373.8
8.4%

2007
$344.8
11.6%

2006
$308.9
9.8%

(1)

$ 24.0

$ 22.8

$ 22.0

$ 20.5

$ 18.7

(1)

$ 3.72

$ 3.35

$ 3.16

$ 2.92

$ 2.72

$ 1.09

$ 0.95

$ 0.88

$ 0.67

$ 0.60

Earnings per share

Dividend per share

(2)

(1)

Additional details can be found in the footnotes of the Five-Year Financial Summary.

(2)

Annual dividend declared for fiscal year 2011 is $1.21.

Fiscal Year Ended January 31,
(In billions)

ROI(1)
ROA

2010
19.3%
8.9%

2009
19.3%
8.4%

Free cash flow(1)

$14.1

$11.6

Net cash provided by operating activities

$26.2

$23.1

(1)

2008

 OI and free cash flow are non-GAAP measures, which are shown with their closest GAAP
R
measures, ROA and net cash provided by operating activities, respectively. The reconciliations and
other information regarding these non-GAAP measures can be found in the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this Annual Report.

Business Description:
Walmart was built on the foundation of saving people money so they can live better. This mission has allowed the
company to grow to more than 8,400 stores in 15 countries around the world. The culture and values instilled by company

Our shareholders can continue to help Walmart become a more

The Walmart 2010 Sustainability Progress Report is

sustainable company by registering to receive Annual Shareholders’

also now available online at walmartstores.com/sustainability.

Meeting materials and other company information electronically.

The 2010 Report is a condensed update to our 2009 Global

In the past two years, we have cut the paper usage for the Annual

Sustainability Report, which we issue every other year. We

Report and proxy by 50 percent. Help us save even more by visit-

encourage you to learn more about our sustainability commit-

ing walmartstores.com/investors to register for electronic delivery.

ments and progress, which are an integral part of our mission to

Please also consider voting your shares electronically. Instructions

save people money so they can live better.

are included in your shareholders’ package.

The minimized environmental footprint of this report is the result
of an extensive, collaborative effort of Walmart and its supply chain
partners. The environmental and social impact was a consideration
from the very inception of the project. It is printed on FSC-certified
responsibly forested paper containing recycled PCW fiber that is
Elementally Chlorine Free (ECF). It is printed using 100% renewable wind power (RECs), along with environmental manufacturing principles that were utilized in the printing process. These
practices include environmentally responsible procurement, lean
manufacturing, green chemistry principles, the recycling of
residual materials and reduced VOC inks and coatings.

founder Sam Walton come alive daily, as Walmart’s 2 million associates serve more than 200 million customers and

Total environmental savings impact

Savings baselines were developed using the national averages of similar
coated papers and printing practices by EarthColor Printing.
0.92 acre of forestland preserved via managed forestry
517 fewer trees consumed via recycling
1 05,034 kWh less energy – the same used by
5 homes for a year
5 60 metric tons of greenhouse gas offset – the
equivalent of taking 112 cars off the road for a year
188,805 fewer gallons of water consumed
1 5,679 kWh converted to clean renewable sources
(printing plant using RECs)

members each week.

Rainforest Alliance CertifiedTM
SmartWood Program Labeling Guidelines

to our
Shareholders, Associates and Customers
Our Priorities: Growth. Leverage. Returns.

One of the most gratifying days for

me during the past year was the important sales day after Thanksgiving in the United
States. As I walked through one of our stores, the engineer in me loved seeing the efficiency
and smoothness of how our operations executed and performed. But I loved even more
hearing from customers who were going to be able to afford an enjoyable Christmas for
their families. They were so thankful for Walmart, and we were so thankful for the opportunity to help them.
Customers all around the world trust us to fulfill our mission of saving people money
so they can live better.They expect quality, low prices and the absolute best value. Last year,
we delivered on those expectations. By doing so, we showed how much we care about
our customers, especially in difficult times. And just as important, we produced strong
results for our shareholders. I want to thank our two million associates around the world
for this success. I appreciate them for all they do every day to serve our customers and
uphold our company’s beliefs and values.

Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Officer
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
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We strongly believe that Walmart is the best positioned global

Our Financial
Priorities
• Growth: We are continuing to grow around the
world. We have many opportunities to grow by

retailer and that we can continue to build on our momentum. As
amazed as I’ve been by the global growth I’ve seen during my 15
years at Walmart, I’m even more impressed by the opportunities that
are ahead both in the United States and around the world.
Specifically, we’re focused on enhancing shareholder value by
driving three important priorities: growth, leverage and returns.

opening new stores, entering new markets,
making acquisitions, integrating online channels,

Growth. First, we continue to have aggressive growth plans. I believe

and developing new, innovative formats to allow

that no other global retailer can deliver the kind of growth that

people to experience the Walmart brands.

Walmart can over the next several years. In the United States, we
have considerable opportunities in major metropolitan markets,

• Leverage: We are leveraging our scale and best

with innovative new formats and by making our existing assets

practices to create competitive advantages. We also

more productive. We also have lots of opportunities in Walmart

remain committed to leveraging operating expenses

International by accelerating square footage growth, entering new

and finding additional ways to benefit from our

markets and making acquisitions. Sam’s membership initiatives will

global expertise, talented associates and

attract new members. We’ll continue to expand into new channels,

company scale.

so customers can shop and experience Walmart when, where and
how they want.

• Returns: We have a rich heritage of delivering
strong shareholder returns. Each operating

Leverage. Second, we are committed throughout the organization

segment is focused on contributing to consistent,

to leverage expenses and improve productivity. Our goal remains

strong company returns.

very clear: we will grow operating expenses slower than sales and
grow operating income faster than sales. By lowering expenses,
passing those savings on to customers, bringing more customers
in our doors, and selling more merchandise, we’re reenergizing

Financial and operating results. Throughout my career, I’ve

the “productivity loop” that’s been so vital to Walmart through-

always emphasized performance. And I’m really proud of the

out our history. We will do even more to leverage the scale,

performance of our team around the world and the results

expenses and expertise of our total company all around the world.

Walmart delivered for fiscal year 2010 in a year challenged by a

We’ll continue to make investments in technology that are clearly

difficult economy in all of our markets. Our results reflect the

driving greater efficiency throughout our company. And we plan

underlying strength of our business and our strategies to

to move even quicker and be a more innovative company.

improve shareholder value.
For the full year,Walmart reported earnings per share of $3.72.

Returns. Third, we have a track record of generating solid returns

Net sales were more than $405 billion this year, with International

at Walmart. Each operating segment has a long-term plan to con-

net sales exceeding $100 billion for the first time in Walmart’s

tribute to strong company returns. Our goal is also to continue to

history. Our free cash flow performance continues to be

produce significant free cash flow to drive our ROI performance

impressive, closing the year with $14.1 billion in free cash flow.

and deliver greater shareholder value.

We also posted a pre-tax return on investment (ROI) of 19.3
percent for the year, equal to last year’s ROI performance.
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Live better. Throughout my first year in this new role, I was continually impressed with Walmart’s
opportunity to lead on big issues in the world. We are proud of our work to be a more sustainable
company, to make health care in the United States more affordable and accessible, and to create
economic opportunity through jobs and investments in our communities. With our reach and the
people, communities and customers we represent, we must continue to make a difference on the
issues that matter.
Looking ahead, we will expand our commitment to providing even more career opportunities
to associates. We’ll also build on our leadership in sustainability through progress on the Sustainable
Product Index and our commitment to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions in the life cycle of
the products on our shelves. The fact is our leadership has helped people and communities think
even better of Walmart, as well as drive innovation and change throughout our company.
.

This time and this world. We live at a time and in a world that I believe truly calls out for Walmart
and the work that our two million associates do every day. Sam Walton may not have been able to
guess the specific challenges we’ve all faced over the past year or the challenges we’ll face in the
future. But he had a vision for a company that would
help people “save and do better” in life. And he believed
that vision could apply everywhere. It’s up to us to fulfill
this vision to the greatest extent possible. That’s our
responsibility.When I speak with customers, I know this
is what they expect from Walmart – no matter how
good or challenging the economy.
At the same time, we will live and uphold our
extraordinary values and beliefs that are the foundation
of everything we do. We’ll show that we respect individuals and always put our customers first, while driving
the changes needed to be an even better company.
We will make the absolute most of our opportunity
and capacity to lead as a retailer, as a company, and as
people who truly care about serving and helping other
people around the world.

Listening to our customers is an important part of our
culture. It’s through customer interactions that we truly
understand their expectations of Walmart as we work to
save people money so they can live better.

Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Officer
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
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U.S.
Millions of customers trust Walmart U.S. every day to
deliver value through quality merchandise at the lowest
possible price. Customers continue to rank us higher than
ever for fast checkout, friendly associates and clean stores.
Our associates are more engaged than ever in serving
Walmart customers.

Busy moms expect a clean and efficient store layout
with clear messages on price and value. They also
depend on Walmart to have high-quality products
at everyday low prices, whether it is the freshest
produce or basic apparel. Our continued investments
in systems and processes contribute to a further
reduction of inventory.

SAVING Customers Money
So They Can Live Better
Growth opportunities continue. We are more committed than ever to helping customers save money so
they can live better in every category throughout the store. Price leadership continues to be the cornerstone
of how we go to market. The remodeling program, a key component of the Project Impact strategic
framework, is now in its third year and continues to improve the customer shopping experience.
Growth in the United States will come from additional penetration into more metropolitan markets,
as well as from new formats and stronger integration with the online business. Walmart.com traffic
exceeded one billion visits this past year, growing more than 15 percent over the previous year
through Site-to-Store™ and home delivery.

Leverage scale and reduce costs. Innovation, process improvements and strong management teams
drove significant improvements in our business. Walmart U.S. repositioned the business to leverage
operating expenses on a slower rate of sales growth this past year. Improved productivity through
enhanced scheduling systems better matched associate staffing levels in our stores to customer traffic.
Stronger supply chain processes also improved inventory f low. Merchandising and planning systems
contributed to lower inventory levels, which were also benefited by increased sell-through. Global
sourcing initiatives now under way will strengthen efforts to drive down the cost of goods and pass
those savings on to our customers. The restructuring of the Walmart U.S. operations organization,
announced early this year, provides a much more integrated approach to running the business and
creates opportunities for career development and growth for our talented associates.

Improved returns. Walmart U.S. significantly increased its cash f low and return on invested capital
in fiscal 2010. Gross margin improvements, tight expense control, strong inventory management and
efficient capital allocation contributed to this improved performance. We reduced year-end inventory
by $1.8 billion, or 7.6 percent, and increased inventory turns as well.
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International
Walmart International’s significant growth demonstrates
that delivering low prices on quality products resonates
with consumers in every market. Today, we are helping
to make this a reality for millions of customers in 14
countries outside the United States. Last year, we added
more than 21 million square feet of retail space and we
expect to grow as much as 8 to 10 percent this year.

We serve such diverse consumer markets as China,
Mexico, the United Kingdom and Brazil. While
we tailor the assortment and store layout to the
needs of each country, customers around the world
depend on us to consistently deliver freshness and
quality at a compelling price.
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Growing Globally
To Serve More Customers
Our dual growth strategy. Walmart International achieved a milestone by surpassing the $100 billion
net sales mark for the year. Our fastest growing division is expected to continue an aggressive pace through
strong organic growth and acquisitions. In fiscal 2010, we added more than 500 units, all from organic
growth. Walmart Canada continues to increase sales through its supercentre expansion program. Brazil,
China and Mexico continue to offer significant opportunities to add new stores and serve more customers.
We will grow in our countries by winning locally. Each country’s management team works strategically,
using a winning customer proposition by store format and by the total market. We must remain relevant
to the customer in order to grow, and our management teams have the freedom to operate within their
overall framework to tailor store format, merchandise and price points to the needs of each individual
market. We also continue to work closely with governments where we operate, by aligning with them
to drive economic growth, including jobs.

Leverage scale and expertise. We are focused on leveraging both operating expenses and our scale to
improve performance and profitability. Sharing our knowledge and best practices helps drive efficiencies
and increase sales within the country and across regions. We also recognize that one solution can’t meet the
needs of every country, as customers trust their local brands to be relevant to their needs. Adhering to the
“productivity loop” – buying for less, operating for less and selling for less – remains critical to our success.
We closed the year by leveraging expenses as a division on a constant currency basis, before the impact
of our acquisition in Chile, and we are committed to further improvements this year, including decreasing
the inventory “days on hand.”

Improve returns. We will balance our significant growth with our goal of improving returns. The risk
profile of more mature markets like the United Kingdom helps provide the balance for significant growth
opportunities in emerging markets like Brazil, China and India. We are disciplined in our capital efficiency,
as our returns are more predictable on organic growth than acquisitions.
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Helping Members
Make Smart Choices
Grow sales, membership and share. Our mission is to make savings simple for members
by providing them with exciting, quality merchandise and a superior shopping experience,
all at a great value.
In fiscal 2010, we launched a number of key initiatives to grow the business. For
example, eValues strengthens relationships with Plus members by adding even more value
to the Sam’s Club membership.We are showing members how to save even more by shopExceeding our members’ expectations on
product quality and assortment is at the heart
of the Sam’s Club experience, whether it’s
an Advantage or Business member. When we
integrate that with excellent services, we have
a recipe for member retention and growth.

ping additional categories in the club. We expect to see increased sales and memberships.
Our focus on measuring member insights is powering merchandising, membership
and operational initiatives. Member views and attitudes guide us in making merchandise choices that are more relevant for all members, as well as meeting their high quality
expectations.We are tailoring our merchandise mix and strengthening quality to accelerate
share growth in large profitable categories.
We are even more focused on meeting the needs of both our Advantage and
Business members. Members rely on Sam’s for a variety of products including fresh
food, office products, health and wellness, and consumable products. In addition, we are
able to excite our members with great electronic, seasonal, apparel and other products.
Members continue to shop us for many reasons – from the “stock up” trip to the
weekday dinner to the special event.

Leveraging efficiency to drive returns. We are investing greater capital in remodeling
clubs to make shopping more efficient and enjoyable. We have made our clubs more
productive by reducing inventory, leveraging expenses and eliminating non-value-added
activities. Our process improvements significantly strengthened scores in associate
productivity and member satisfaction this year. In addition, our new innovations team
leverages key learnings from the Walmart U.S. business, as well as shares best practices
across the U.S. club network.

OUR
COMPANY By The Numbers
United States
Operational Overview
U.S.
U.S.

International

Highlights

•N
 et sales increased 1.1% to $258
billion. On a 4-5-4 calendar, customer traffic in comparable stores
was up 1.3% and dot.com traffic
hit 9-year highs.
• Gained market share in numerous
merchandise categories.
• Grew operating income faster than
sales – growing 5.2% to $19.5 billion.
• Project Impact, which improves the
customer shopping experience and
productivity, was reflected in 31% of
the U.S. store base at year-end.
• Labor productivity increased for
the year, contributing to operating
expense leverage in the fourth quarter.
• Reduced inventory by $1.8 billion
over the prior year.
• Grew ROI through gross margin
improvements, inventory management and a disciplined capital
allocation process.
• Achieved record associate engagement
scores, which led to improved
customer service.
• Achieved record customer experience
scores for the year, reflecting increased
traffic and higher “fast, friendly,
clean” scores.

•E
 xceeded $100 billion in net sales
for the first time in company history,
growing 11.2% on a constant
currency basis.
• Achieved strong comparable store
sales, gaining market share in
many countries.
• Brazil, China and Mexico added
17.5 million square feet of retail
space, 83% of the segment’s total
growth.
• Leveraged operating expenses in
all four quarters on a constant
currency basis, excluding the
Chilean acquisition.
• Continued to make progress on
reducing inventory and leveraging
productivity through process
improvements.
• Remained focused on balancing
risk profile between mature markets
like the U.K. and emerging markets
like Brazil and China.
• Committed to improving
country returns.
• Continue to be encouraged by the
broad-based appeal of EDLC/EDLP.
Last year, customers came to depend
on our price leadership from our
52 store banners.

• Delivered sales increase (excluding
fuel) of more than 1.7%. Increased
traffic year over year in all
four quarters.
• Grew operating income faster than
sales at a rate of 2.4%, before the
impact of restructuring charges.
• Grew membership income by
2.1%, driven in part by eValues and
upgrades to Plus memberships.
• Reduced inventory by 9.5% and
leveraged expenses in the fourth
quarter, before the impact of
restructuring charges.
• Increased both sales per labor hour
and units per labor hour.
• Committed greater capital to
remodeling existing clubs and
launched Project Portfolio test,
increasing space for highly productive categories, such as fresh
and health and wellness.
• Announced new product demo
program to drive branding and sales.
• Closed 10 underperforming clubs.
• Improved shopping experience and
increased productivity, leading to
better member experience scores and
higher associate engagement scores.

2010 Sales

$258,229

$100,107

$46,710

2010
Operating
Income

$ 19,522

$   5,033

$ 1,512

Retail Units

3,708

4,112

596

Total Square
Footage

602.9

269.9

79.4

(In millions, except retail units)
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Walmart has a responsibility to lead on issues
that make a difference in helping people live
better. Our commitment is built on four pillars:
associate opportunity, sustainability, responsible
sourcing and community involvement.

The Walmart story is also about influencing the
world around us to create positive change. From
the growth and development of our associates, to
sustainability, responsible sourcing and community
involvement, we strive to honor Sam Walton’s legacy
by making the world a better place.
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Helping People
Live Better Worldwide
Associate opportunity. As Walmart grows, we bring more than jobs to a community. We offer millions of
people the opportunity to build long-term careers. Benefits are competitive in each country. We recruit U.S.
military veterans and help transition active-duty personnel to civilian jobs. Our associate roles are being redesigned
to create clear career paths. In India, for example, the Bharti Walmart Training Center prepares rural youth for jobs
in retail and related industries.

Sustainability. As the world’s largest retailer, Walmart has unparalleled opportunities to reduce environmental impact,
conserve natural resources and sell more sustainable products. In fiscal 2010, we reduced our global plastic bag
consumption by more than 16 percent, and continued to improve the efficiency of our U.S. truck fleet. By collaborating with suppliers and the Sustainability Consortium on our Sustainable Product Index, we will drive product
innovation, increase supply chain transparency, and create a single source for product sustainability. This year, we
committed to reduce 20 million metric tons of greenhouse gas emissions in our supply chain by the end of 2015.

Responsible sourcing. Customers count on us to work with suppliers who share our commitment to high
ethical and social responsibility to help ensure products we sell are safe and have the quality to stand the wear
and tear of families’ busy lives. It is critical that sourcing decisions reflect our values and demonstrate respect for
workers throughout the supply chain. Because our global sourcing efforts are so important, we continue to drive
standards consistent with the Global Social Compliance Program and work collaboratively with suppliers and
other industry stakeholders.

Community involvement. Our passion for serving our local communities is woven into the fabric of Walmart’s
culture through associate volunteerism and donations.We act quickly to support areas impacted by natural disasters
such as the Haiti and Chile earthquakes. This past year,Walmart, our Foundations, associates and customers, supported
organizations worldwide with $624 million in charitable contributions. We strive to increase our community impact
globally. For example, in a number of countries, Walmart and CARE help empower women to achieve more
equitable, consistent incomes. We work with farmers and small manufacturers in South and Central America to
increase efficiency, improve supply chain processes, and link them to the global marketplace.
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People are the key
To Delivering On Our Mission
My dad did not set out to make Walmart the world’s largest retailer. His goal was simply to make Walmart
better every day, and he thought constantly about how to do just that. He was always visiting stores, talking
with associates and listening to customers. He knew that the best ideas come from people – inside and
outside the company. In fact, Dad attributed some of Walmart’s most innovative ideas to associates.
His philosophy and values – respect the individual, serve the customer and strive for excellence – also
remain the driving force behind our culture and our success. Our company continues to instill in our
associates the highest standards of integrity, and we remain committed to accountability if those standards
are not met. I believe that the same intensity that drove my dad drives the entire Walmart organization
today to be the world’s best retailer.
Our people really do make the difference at Walmart, and more than ever, we proved this last year by
producing strong results for our customers and shareholders.

Rob Walton

The importance of dynamic leaders extends to every market where we operate, as they must ensure
that the Walmart culture is adapted and integrated into their markets. When I visit stores, I am always
impressed with the talent and dedication of our associates. My dad would have loved to see the way
our company and our associates are helping customers and communities.
This past year kicked off with Mike Duke assuming the position of president and chief executive
officer of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., taking the helm from Lee Scott. It is a credit to both Mike and Lee – and
to the Board and its selection process – that the CEO transition was so seamless. I am also pleased that
like Lee, Mike continues my dad’s “servant leader” philosophy, where a leader serves or takes care of his
people first. Servant leaders have that unique ability to get the entire team behind an initiative.
Our Board could not be more enthusiastic about Walmart’s future. Our management teams are more
focused than ever on executing a strategic plan based on three clear priorities – growth, leverage and
returns – that are designed to improve shareholder value. Just as important, our businesses around the world
have never been more aligned behind our mission to save people money so they can live better.

S. Robson Walton
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
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2010 Walmart Board of Directors
Aida M. Alvarez(a)

Michael T. Duke(d)(e)

S. Robson Walton(d)(e)

Ms. Alvarez is the former Administrator
of the U.S. Small Business Administration
and was a member of President Clinton’s
Cabinet from 1997 to 2001.

Mr. Duke is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Mr. Walton is the Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Gregory B. Penner(e)

Christopher J. Williams(a)*(d)

Mr. Penner is a General Partner at
Madrone Capital Partners, an investment
management firm.

Mr. Williams is the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer of The Williams Capital Group,
L.P., an investment bank.

James W. Breyer(b)*
Mr. Breyer is a Partner of Accel Partners,
a venture capital firm.

Allen I. Questrom(c)
M. Michele Burns(b)
Ms. Burns is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Mercer LLC,
a subsidiary of Marsh & McLennan
Companies, Inc.

Mr. Questrom is the retired Chairman of
the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer of J.C. Penney Company, Inc.,
where he served in that capacity from
September 2000 to December 2004.

James I. Cash, Jr., Ph.D.(a)

H. Lee Scott, Jr.(d)*(e)*

Dr. Cash is the retired James E. Robison
Emeritus Professor of Business
Administration at Harvard Business
School, where he served from July 1976
to October 2003.

Mr. Scott is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors of
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. He is the former
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., serving in that
position from January 2000 to January 2009.

Linda S. Wolf(c)*
Ms. Wolf is the retired Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer of Leo Burnett Worldwide, Inc.,
an advertising agency and division of
Publicis Groupe S.A.

Roger C. Corbett(b)
Mr. Corbett is the retired Chief Executive
Officer and Group Managing Director of
Woolworths Limited, the largest retail
company in Australia.

Arne M. Sorenson(a)

Douglas N. Daft(c)

Jim C. Walton(b)

Mr. Daft is the retired Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer of The Coca-Cola Company, a
beverage manufacturer, where he served
in that capacity from February 2000 until
May 2004, and in various other capacities
since 1969.

Mr. Walton is the Chairman of the Board
of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
of Arvest Bank Group, Inc., a group of
banks operating in the states of Arkansas,
Kansas, Missouri and Oklahoma.

Mr. Sorenson is the President and
Chief Operating Officer of
Marriott International, Inc.

Committees
(a) Audit
(b) Strategic Planning and Finance
(c) Compensation, Nominating
and Governance
(d) Executive
(e) Equity Compensation
* Denotes Committee Chairman

Board members pictured left to right: Jim C. Walton, James W. Breyer, James I. Cash, Jr., Ph.D., Linda S. Wolf,
H. Lee Scott, Jr., Michael T. Duke, S. Robson Walton, Aida M. Alvarez, Gregory B. Penner, Roger C. Corbett,
Christopher J. Williams, Douglas N. Daft, Allen I. Questrom, M. Michele Burns and Arne M. Sorenson
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executive officers
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Vice Chairman, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
M. Susan Chambers
Executive Vice President, Global People
Brian C. Cornell
Executive Vice President, President and
Chief Executive Officer, Sam’s Club
Leslie A. Dach
Executive Vice President, Corporate Affairs
and Government Relations
Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Officer
Rollin L. Ford
Executive Vice President,
Chief Information Officer
Thomas D. Hyde
Executive Vice President, Legal, Ethics,
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C. Douglas McMillon
Executive Vice President, President
and Chief Executive Officer,
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2010 Financial Review
Five-Year Financial Summary
(Amounts in millions except per share and unit count data)
As of and for the Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

Operating Results (1)
Net sales 		
Net sales increase
Comparable store sales in the United States (2)
Walmart U.S.
	Sam’s Club
Gross profit margin
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses,
as a percentage of net sales
Operating income
Income from continuing operations attributable to Walmart
Per share of common stock:
	Income from continuing operations attributable
		 to Walmart, diluted
	Dividends

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

$405,046
1.0%
-0.8%
-0.7%
-1.4%
24.8%

$401,087
7.3%
3.5%
3.2%
4.9%
24.2%

$373,821
8.4%
1.6%
1.0%
4.9%
24.0%

$344,759
11.6%
2.0%
1.9%
2.5%
23.4%

$308,945
9.8%
3.4%
3.0%
5.0%
23.1%

19.7%
$ 23,950
14,414

19.3%
$ 22,798
13,254

19.0%
$ 21,952
12,863

18.5%
$ 20,497
12,189

18.0%
$ 18,693
11,386

$    3.72
1.09

$3.35
0.95

$3.16
0.88

$2.92
0.67

$2.72
0.60

$ 33,160
102,307
170,706
36,401
70,749

$ 34,511
95,653
163,429
34,549
65,285

$ 35,159
96,867
163,514
33,402
64,608

$ 33,667
88,287
151,587
30,735
61,573

$ 31,910
77,863
138,793
30,096
53,171

Unit Counts
Walmart U.S. Segment
International Segment
Sam’s Club Segment

3,708
4,112
596

3,656
3,605
602

3,550
3,098
591

3,443
2,734
579

3,289
2,158
567

Total units		

8,416

7,863

7,239

6,756

6,014

Financial Position
Inventories
Property, equipment and capital lease assets, net
Total assets
Long-term debt, including obligations under capital leases
Total Walmart shareholders’ equity

(1) In connection with the company’s finance transformation project, we reviewed and adjusted the classification of certain revenue and expense items within our Consolidated
Statements of Income for financial reporting purposes. Although the reclassifications impacted net sales, gross margin and operating, selling, general and administrative
expenses, they did not impact operating income or income from continuing operations attributable to Walmart. The changes were effective February 1, 2009 and have
been reflected for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008.
(2) Comparable store and club sales include fuel. For fiscal 2006, we considered comparable sales to be sales at stores and clubs that were open as of February 1st of the prior
fiscal year and which had not been converted, expanded or relocated since that date. Fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 comparable sales includes all stores and clubs that have been
open for at least the previous 12 months. Additionally, for those fiscal years, stores and clubs that are relocated, expanded or converted are excluded from comparable sales
for the first 12 months following the relocation, expansion or conversion. Fiscal 2010 and 2009 comparable sales include sales from stores and clubs open for the previous
12 months, including remodels, relocations and expansions. Fiscal 2008 and prior fiscal years’ comparable sales do not reflect reclassifications effective February 1, 2009,
as noted above.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
Overview
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart,” the “company” or “we”) operates
retail stores in various formats around the world and is committed to
saving people money so they can live better. We earn the trust of our
customers every day by providing a broad assortment of quality merchandise and services at every day low prices (“EDLP”), while fostering
a culture that rewards and embraces mutual respect, integrity and
diversity. EDLP is our pricing philosophy under which we price items
at a low price every day so that our customers trust that our prices will
not change under frequent promotional activity. Our focus for Sam’s
Club is to provide exceptional value on brand name merchandise at
“members only” prices for both business and personal use. Internationally,
we operate with similar philosophies. Our fiscal year ends on January 31
for our U.S., Canada and Puerto Rico operations. Our fiscal year ends
on December 31 for all other operations.
We intend for this discussion to provide the reader with information
that will assist in understanding our financial statements, the changes
in certain key items in those financial statements from year to year, and
the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how
certain accounting principles affect our financial statements. We also
discuss certain performance metrics that management uses to assess
our performance. The discussion also provides information about the
financial results of the various segments of our business to provide a
better understanding of how those segments and their results affect the
financial condition and results of operations of the company as a whole.
This discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated
Financial Statements as of January 31, 2010, and the year then ended,
and accompanying notes.
Our operations comprise three business segments: Walmart U.S.,
International and Sam’s Club. The Walmart U.S. segment includes the
company’s mass merchant concept in the United States, operating under
the “Walmart” or “Wal-Mart” brand, as well as walmart.com. The
International segment consists of the company’s operations outside of
the 50 United States. The Sam’s Club segment includes the warehouse
membership clubs in the United States, as well as samsclub.com.

Sales By Segment
Net sales in fiscal 2010 were a record
$405.0 billion, up 1.0% from fiscal 2009.
Sam’s Club 11.5%

International 24.7%

Walmart U.S. 63.8%
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Throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, we discuss segment operating
income and comparable store sales. The company measures the results
of its segments using, among other measures, each segment’s operating
income which includes certain corporate overhead allocations. From
time to time, we revise the measurement of each segment’s operating
income, including any corporate overhead allocations, as dictated by
the information regularly reviewed by our chief operating decision
maker. When we do so, the segment operating income for each segment affected by the revisions is restated for all periods presented to
maintain comparability.
In connection with the company’s finance transformation project, we
reviewed and adjusted the classification of certain revenue and expense
items within our Consolidated Statements of Income for financial reporting purposes. The reclassifications did not impact operating income or
consolidated net income attributable to Walmart. The changes were
effective February 1, 2009 and have been reflected in all periods presented.
Comparable store sales is a measure which indicates the performance of
our existing U.S. stores and clubs by measuring the growth in sales for
such stores for a particular period over the corresponding period in the
prior year. In fiscal 2008, our method of calculating comparable store
sales included all stores and clubs that were open for at least the previous
12 months. Additionally, stores and clubs that were relocated, expanded
or converted were excluded from comparable store sales for the first 12
months following the relocation, expansion or conversion. During fiscal
year 2008, the company reviewed its definition of comparable store sales
for consistency with other retailers. As a result of that review, since
February 1, 2008, Walmart’s definition of comparable store sales includes
sales from stores and clubs open for the previous 12 months, including
remodels, relocations and expansions. Changes in format continue to be
excluded from comparable store sales when the conversion is accompanied
by a relocation or expansion that results in a change in square footage of
more than five percent. Since the impact of this revision is inconsequential,
the company will not restate comparable store sales results for previously
reported years. Comparable store sales are also referred to as “same-store”
sales by others within the retail industry. The method of calculating
comparable store sales varies across the retail industry. As a result, our
calculation of comparable store sales is not necessarily comparable to
similarly titled measures reported by other companies.
In discussions of our consolidated results and the operating results of our
International segment, we sometimes refer to the impact of changes in
currency exchange rates. When we refer to changes in currency exchange
rates or currency exchange rate fluctuations, we are referring to the
differences between the currency exchange rates we use to convert the
International segment’s operating results from local currencies into
U.S. dollars for reporting purposes. The impacts of currency exchange
rate fluctuations are typically calculated as the difference between
current period activity translated using the current period’s currency
exchange rates and the comparable prior year period’s currency
exchange rates, respectively. We use this method for all countries
where the functional currency is not U.S. denominated.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
The Retail Industry
We operate in the highly competitive retail industry in both the United
States and the countries we serve internationally. We face strong sales
competition from other discount, department, drug, variety and specialty
stores, warehouse clubs, and supermarkets, many of which are national,
regional or international chains, as well as internet-based retailers and
catalog businesses. We compete with a number of companies for prime
retail site locations, as well as in attracting and retaining quality employees
(whom we call “associates”). We, along with other retail companies, are
influenced by a number of factors including, but not limited to: general
economic conditions, cost of goods, consumer disposable income, consumer
debt levels and buying patterns, consumer credit availability, interest rates,
customer preferences, unemployment, labor costs, inflation, deflation,
currency exchange fluctuations, fuel and energy prices, weather patterns,
climate change, catastrophic events, competitive pressures and insurance

costs. Further information on risks to our company can be located in
“Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2010.
Company Performance Metrics
The company’s performance metrics emphasize three priorities for
improving shareholder value: growth, leverage and returns. The
company’s priority of growth focuses on sales growth; the priority of
leverage encompasses the company’s metric to increase our operating
income at a faster rate than the growth in net sales by growing our
operating, selling, general and administrative expenses (“operating
expenses”) at a slower rate than the growth of our net sales; and the
priority of returns focuses on how efficiently the company employs
our assets through return on investment (“ROI”) and how effectively
the company manages working capital through free cash flow.

Growth
Net Sales
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Dollar amounts in millions)		

2010			

2009		

				
				

Net sales

Percent
of total

Walmart U.S.
International
Sam’s Club

$258,229
100,107
46,710

63.8%
24.7%
11.5%

1.1%
1.3%
-0.4%

$255,348
98,840
46,899

63.7%
24.6%
11.7%

6.9%
9.1%
5.8%

$238,915
90,570
44,336

63.9%
24.2%
11.9%

Net Sales		

$405,046

100.0%

1.0%

$401,087

100.0%

7.3%

$373,821

100.0%

Percent		
increase
Net sales

Our net sales increased by 1.0% and 7.3% in fiscal 2010 and 2009,
respectively, when compared to the previous fiscal year. Net sales in
fiscal 2010 increased due to increased customer traffic, continued global
expansion activities and the acquisition of our Chilean subsidiary,
Distribución y Servicio (“D&S”) in January 2009, offset primarily
by a $9.8 billion unfavorable currency exchange rate impact in our
International segment and price deflation in certain merchandise categories in our Walmart U.S. segment. Net sales in fiscal 2009 increased
due to our global expansion activities and comparable store sales increases,
offset by a $2.3 billion unfavorable currency exchange rate impact. Despite
the unfavorable impact of currency exchanges rates, the International
segment’s net sales as a percentage of total company net sales increased in
fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively. Volatility in currency exchange rates
may continue to impact the International segment’s net sales in the future.
Comparable Store Sales

Percent
of total

2008

Percent		
increase
Net sales

Comparable store sales is a measure which indicates the performance of
our existing U.S. stores by measuring the growth in sales for such stores
for a particular period over the corresponding period in the prior year.
Comparable store sales in the United States decreased 0.8% in fiscal 2010
and increased 3.5% in fiscal 2009. Although customer traffic increased
in fiscal 2010, comparable store sales in the United States were lower
than fiscal 2009 due to deflation in certain merchandise categories and
lower fuel prices. Comparable store sales in the United States in fiscal
2009 were higher than fiscal 2008 due to an increase in customer traffic,
as well as an increase in average transaction size per customer.
As we continue to add new stores in the United States, we do so with an
understanding that additional stores may take sales away from existing
units. We estimate the negative impact on comparable store sales as a
result of opening new stores was approximately 0.6% in fiscal 2010 and
1.1% in fiscal 2009. With our planned slower new store growth, we expect
the impact of new stores on comparable store sales to stabilize over time.

	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
2009

2008

			

2010

Walmart U.S.
Sam’s Club (1)

-0.7%
-1.4%

3.2%
4.9%

1.0%
4.9%

Total U.S.

-0.8%

3.5%

1.6%

Percent
of total

(1) S
 am’s Club comparable club sales include fuel. Fuel sales had a negative impact of 2.1
percentage points in fiscal year 2010, and positive impact of 1.2 and 0.7 percentage
points in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively, on comparable club sales.
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Leverage
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Dollar amounts in millions)		
				
				

Operating
income

2009		

2010			
Percent
of total

Percent	Operating
increase
income

2008

Percent
of total

Percent	Operating
increase
income

Percent
of total

Walmart U.S.
International
Sam’s Club
Other			

$19,522
5,033
1,512
(2,117)

81.5%
21.0%
6.3%
-8.8%

5.2%
1.9%
-8.1%
-9.9%

$18,562
4,940
1,646
(2,350)

81.4%
21.7%
7.2%
-10.3%

6.8%
4.6%
-0.1%
30.3%

$17,383
4,725
1,648
(1,804)

79.2%
21.5%
7.5%
-8.2%

Total operating income

$23,950

100.0%

5.1%

$22,798

100.0%

3.9%

$21,952

100.0%

We believe growing operating income at a faster rate than net sales
growth is a meaningful measure because it indicates how effectively
we manage costs and leverage operating expenses. Our objective is to
grow operating expenses at a slower rate than net sales.

and ending total assets of continuing operations plus accumulated
depreciation and amortization less accounts payable and accrued liabilities
for that period, plus a rent factor equal to the rent for the fiscal year
multiplied by a factor of eight.

Operating Expenses
In fiscal 2010, operating expenses increased 2.7% when compared to fiscal
2009, while net sales increased 1.0% over the same period. Operating
expenses grew at a faster rate than net sales due to higher health benefit
costs, restructuring charges and higher advertising expenses. In fiscal
2009, operating expenses increased 9.3% compared to fiscal 2008 while
net sales increased 7.3% over the same period. Operating expenses
grew at a faster rate than net sales in fiscal 2009 primarily due to higher
utility costs, legal matters, higher health benefit costs and increased
corporate expenses.

ROI is considered a non-GAAP financial measure under the SEC’s rules.
We consider return on assets (“ROA”) to be the financial measure
computed in accordance with GAAP that is the most directly comparable
financial measure to ROI as we calculate that financial measure. ROI
differs from ROA (which is income from continuing operations for the
fiscal year divided by average total assets of continuing operations for the
period) because ROI: adjusts operating income to exclude certain expense
items and adds interest income; adjusts total assets from continuing operations for the impact of accumulated depreciation and amortization,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities; and incorporates a factor of
rent to arrive at total invested capital.

Operating Income
For fiscal 2010, we met our objective of growing operating income at
a faster rate than net sales. Our operating income increased by 5.1%
when compared to fiscal 2009, while net sales increased by 1.0% over
the same period. Our Walmart U.S. and International segments met this
objective. Our Sam’s Club segment fell short of this objective primarily
due to a $174 million charge to restructure its operations, including
the closure of 10 clubs. For fiscal 2009, we did not meet our objective
because our operating income increased by 3.9% when compared to
fiscal 2008, while net sales increased by 7.3% over the same period.
The Walmart U.S. and Sam’s Club segments fell short of this objective
due to increases in operating expenses. The International segment fell
short of this objective due to accruals for certain legal matters and
fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Although ROI is a standard financial metric, numerous methods exist for
calculating a company’s ROI. As a result, the method used by management to calculate ROI may differ from the methods other companies
use to calculate their ROI. We urge you to understand the methods
used by another company to calculate its ROI before comparing our
ROI to that of such other company.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
Operating Income
(Amounts in millions)
$24,000

Returns
Return on Investment
Management believes return on investment is a meaningful metric to
share with investors because it helps investors assess how effectively
Walmart is employing its assets. Trends in ROI can fluctuate over time
as management balances long-term potential strategic initiatives with
any possible short-term impacts. ROI was 19.3 percent for both fiscal
years ended January 31, 2010 and 2009.
We define ROI as adjusted operating income (operating income plus
interest income, depreciation and amortization and rent expense) for
the fiscal year divided by average invested capital during that period.
We consider average invested capital to be the average of our beginning
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Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. operating
income increased 5.1% in fiscal
2010, driven by a 5.2% increase
in Walmart U.S.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
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The calculation of ROI along with a reconciliation to the calculation of ROA, the most comparable GAAP financial measurement, is as follows:
	For the Years Ended January 31,
(Dollar amounts in millions)

2010

2009

Numerator
Operating income (1)
+ Interest income (1)
+ Depreciation and amortization (1)
+ Rent (1)

$ 23,950
181
7,157
1,808

$ 22,798
284
6,739
1,751

= Adjusted operating income

$ 33,096

$ 31,572

Denominator
Average total assets of continuing operations (2)
+ Average accumulated depreciation and amortization (2)
- Average accounts payable (2)
- Average accrued liabilities (2)
+ Rent x 8

$166,900
38,359
29,650
18,423
14,464

$162,891
33,317
29,597
16,919
14,008

= Average invested capital

$171,650

$163,700

CALCULATION OF RETURN ON INVESTMENT

Return on investment (ROI)

19.3%

19.3%

CALCULATION OF RETURN ON ASSETS
Numerator
Income from continuing operations (1)

$ 14,927

$ 13,753

Denominator
Average total assets of continuing operations (2)

$166,900

$162,891

Return on assets (ROA)

8.9%

8.4%

		As of January 31,
Certain Balance Sheet Data

Total assets of continuing operations
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
(1)

2010

2009

2008

$170,566
41,210
30,451
18,734

$163,234
35,508
28,849
18,112

$162,547
31,125
30,344
15,725

(1) B
 ased on continuing operations only and therefore excludes the impact of closing 23 stores and the divesture of other properties of The Seiyu, Ltd. (now Walmart Japan) pursuant to a
restructuring program adopted during the third quarter of fiscal 2009. All of these activities have been disclosed as discontinued operations. Total assets as of January 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008 in the table above exclude assets of discontinued operations that are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets of $140 million, $195 million and $967 million, respectively.
(2) T
 he average is based on the addition of the account balance at the end of the current period to the account balance at the end of the prior period and dividing by 2.
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Free Cash Flow
We define free cash flow as net cash provided by operating activities
of continuing operations in a period minus payments for property and
equipment made in that period. We generated positive free cash flow
of $14.1 billion, $11.6 billion and $5.7 billion for the years ended
January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increase in our
free cash flow is primarily the result of improved operating results
and inventory management.
Free cash flow is considered a non-GAAP financial measure under the
SEC’s rules. Management believes, however, that free cash flow, which
measures our ability to generate additional cash from our business
operations, is an important financial measure for use in evaluating the
company’s financial performance. Free cash flow should be considered
in addition to, rather than as a substitute for, income from continuing
operations as a measure of our performance and net cash provided by
operating activities as a measure of our liquidity.
Additionally, our definition of free cash flow is limited, in that it does
not represent residual cash flows available for discretionary expenditures due to the fact that the measure does not deduct the payments
required for debt service and other contractual obligations or payments
made for business acquisitions. Therefore, we believe it is important to
view free cash flow as a measure that provides supplemental information to our entire statement of cash flows.
Although other companies report their free cash flow, numerous methods may exist for calculating a company’s free cash flow. As a result, the
method used by our management to calculate free cash flow may differ
from the methods other companies use to calculate their free cash flow.
We urge you to understand the methods used by another company to
calculate its free cash flow before comparing our free cash flow to that
of such other company.

We generated positive free cash flow of
$14.1 billion, $11.6 billion and $5.7 billion
for the years ended January 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively. The increase in our
free cash flow is primarily the result of improved
operating results and inventory management.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation of free cash flow, a nonGAAP financial measure, to net cash provided by operating activities
of continuing operations, a GAAP measure, which we believe to be the
GAAP financial measure most directly comparable to free cash flow, as
well as information regarding net cash used in investing activities and
net cash used in financing activities.
Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Amounts in millions)

Net cash provided by
operating activities
Payments for property
and equipment
Free cash flow
Net cash used in
investing activities
Net cash used in
financing activities

2010

$26,249
(12,184)
$ 14,065

2009

2008

$ 23,147 $ 20,642
(11,499)

(14,937)

$ 11,648 $   5,705

$(11,620) $(10,742) $(15,670)
$(14,191) $ (9,918) $ (7,422)

Results of Operations
The following discussion of our Results of Operations is based on our
continuing operations and excludes any results or discussion of our
discontinued operations.
Unusual or infrequent items that impacted our income from continuing
operations during the fiscal years ended 2010, 2009 and 2008 were
as follows:
• In fiscal 2010, the company announced several organizational
changes, including the closure of 10 Sam’s Clubs, designed to
strengthen and streamline our operations. As a result, we recorded
$260 million in pre-tax restructuring charges.
• In fiscal 2010, we recorded $372 million in net tax benefits primarily
from the repatriation of certain non-U.S. earnings that increased
U.S. foreign tax credits.
• In fiscal 2009, the company settled 63 wage-and-hour class action
lawsuits. As a result of the settlement, the company recorded a
pre-tax charge of approximately $382 million during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009.
• In fiscal 2008, we reduced our accrued liabilities for our general
liability and worker’s compensation claims. As a result, operating
expenses were reduced by a pre-tax amount of $298 million.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
Consolidated Results of Operations
					Operating Income
			
% Change from 	Operating
as a Percentage			Square
	Fiscal Year
Net Sales (1)
Prior Fiscal Year
Income (1)
of Net Sales
Comp Sales
Unit Counts
Footage (2)

2010
2009
2008

$405,046
401,087
373,821

1.0%
7.3%
8.4%

$23,950
22,798
21,952

5.9%
5.7%
5.9%

-0.8%
3.5%
1.6%

8,416
7,863
7,239

952,204
918,008
867,448

(1) Amounts in millions
(2) Amounts in thousands

Our consolidated net sales increased by 1.0% and 7.3% in fiscal 2010 and
2009, respectively, when compared to the previous fiscal year. Net sales in
fiscal 2010 increased due to increased customer traffic, continued global
expansion activities and the acquisition of D&S in January 2009, offset
primarily by a $9.8 billion unfavorable currency exchange rate impact
in our International segment and price deflation in certain merchandise
categories in our Walmart U.S. segment. Net sales in fiscal 2009 increased
due to our global store expansion activities, comparable store sales
increases, offset by a $2.3 billion unfavorable currency exchange rate
impact. Volatility in currency exchange rates may continue to impact
the International segment’s net sales in the future.
Our gross profit, as a percentage of net sales, (our “gross profit margin”)
was 24.8%, 24.2% and 24.0% in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Our Walmart U.S. and International segment sales yield higher gross
profit margins than our Sam’s Club segment. In fiscal 2010, gross profit
margin increased primarily due to the continued focus on enhanced
merchandising strategies and better inventory management in our Walmart
U.S. and Sam’s Club segments. The gross profit margin increase in fiscal
2009 compared to fiscal 2008 was primarily due to lower inventory
shrinkage and less markdown activity as a result of more effective merchandising in the Walmart U.S. segment.

Operating expenses, as a percentage of net sales, were 19.7%, 19.3%
and 19.0% for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. In fiscal 2010,
operating expenses increased primarily due to higher health benefit
costs, a pre-tax charge of $260 million relating to the restructuring of
U.S. operations and higher advertising expenses. In fiscal 2009, operating expenses increased primarily due to higher utility costs, a pre-tax
charge of approximately $382 million resulting from the settlement of
63 wage-and-hour class action lawsuits, higher health benefit costs and
increased corporate expenses compared to fiscal 2008.
Our effective income tax rate was 32.4% for fiscal year 2010 and 34.2%
for fiscal years 2009 and 2008. The fiscal 2010 effective tax rate decreased
compared to fiscal 2009 due to $372 million in net tax benefits that
primarily resulted from the repatriation of certain non-U.S. earnings
that increased our utilization of U.S. foreign tax credits.
As a result of the factors discussed above, we reported $14.9 billion,
$13.8 billion and $13.3 billion of income from continuing operations
for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Walmart U.S. Segment
					Operating Income
			
% Change from 	Operating
as a Percentage			Square
	Fiscal Year
Net Sales (1)
Prior Fiscal Year
Income (1)
of Net Sales
Comp Sales
Unit Counts
Footage (2)

2010
2009
2008

$258,229
255,348
238,915

1.1%
6.9%
5.6%

$19,522
18,562
17,383

7.6%
7.3%
7.3%

-0.7%
3.2%
1.0%

3,708
3,656
3,550

602,908
589,299
566,629

(1) Amounts in millions
(2) Amounts in thousands

The segment net sales growth in fiscal 2010 resulted from an increase
in customer traffic and strength in our grocery and health and wellness
categories, as well as our continued expansion activities. In fiscal 2009,
the segment net sales growth resulted from a comparable store sales
increase of 3.2%, in addition to our expansion activities. Strength in
the grocery, health and wellness and entertainment categories, as well
as strong seasonal sales throughout the year also contributed to the fiscal 2009 net sales increase.

The segment net sales growth in fiscal 2010
resulted from an increase in customer traffic
and strength in our grocery and health and
wellness categories, as well as our continued
expansion activities.
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Comparable store sales were lower in fiscal 2010, despite increased
customer traffic, due to a decrease in average transaction size per customer
driven by price deflation in certain merchandise categories. Comparable
store sales were higher in fiscal 2009 due to an increase in customer traffic,
as well as an increase in average transaction size per customer.
In fiscal 2010, gross profit margin increased 0.7 percentage points
compared to the prior year due to more effective merchandising, better
inventory management and lower inventory shrinkage. In fiscal 2009, gross
profit margin increased 0.4 percentage points compared to the prior
year primarily due to decreased markdown activity and lower inventory shrinkage. The improvements in both years were attributable to

merchandising initiatives that have improved space allocation, enhanced
our price leadership and increased supply chain efficiencies.
Segment operating expenses, as a percentage of segment net sales, increased
by 0.4 percentage points in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 due to
lower segment net sales increases compared to the prior year, higher
health benefit costs, higher advertising expenses and a pre-tax charge of
$73 million relating to the restructuring of Walmart U.S. operations.
Segment operating expenses, as a percentage of segment net sales, increased
0.4 percentage points in fiscal 2009 compared to the prior year due to
hurricane-related expenses, higher bonus payments for store associates,
higher utility costs and an increase in health benefit costs.

International Segment
					
			
% Change from
Operating
Fiscal Year
Net Sales (1)
Prior Fiscal Year
Income (1)

2010
2009
2008

$100,107
98,840
90,570

1.3%
9.1%
17.8%

$5,033
4,940
4,725

Operating Income
as a Percentage		
of Net Sales
Unit Counts
5.0%
5.0%
5.2%

4,112
3,605
3,098

Square
Footage (2 )
269,894
248,803
222,583

(1) Amounts in millions
(2) Amounts in thousands

At January 31, 2010, our International segment was comprised of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries operating in Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Japan,
Puerto Rico and the United Kingdom, our majority-owned subsidiaries
operating in five countries in Central America, and in Chile and Mexico,
our joint ventures in India and China and our other controlled subsidiaries in China.
The fiscal 2010 increase in the International segment’s net sales primarily
resulted from our expansion activities and the inclusion of the results
of D&S, acquired in January 2009, offset by the unfavorable impact of
changes in currency exchange rates of $9.8 billion. For additional information regarding our acquisitions, refer to Note 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The fiscal 2009 increase in the International
segment’s net sales was primarily due to net sales growth from existing
units and our international expansion program, offset by the unfavorable
impact of changes in currency exchange rates of $2.3 billion.

The fiscal 2010 increase in the International
segment’s net sales primarily resulted from
our expansion activities and the inclusion of
the results of D&S, acquired in January 2009,
offset by the unfavorable impact of changes
in currency exchange rates of $9.8 billion.
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In fiscal 2010, the International segment’s gross profit margin increased
0.2 percentage points compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily driven by currency exchange rate fluctuations and the inclusion
of D&S. In fiscal 2009, the International segment’s gross profit margin
decreased 0.2 percentage points compared to the prior year. The decrease
was primarily driven by growth in lower margin fuel sales in the United
Kingdom and the transition to EDLP as a strategy in Japan.
Segment operating expenses, as a percentage of segment net sales, increased
0.3 percentage points in fiscal 2010 compared to the prior year primarily
as a result of the inclusion of D&S, acquired in January 2009. Segment
operating expenses, as a percentage of segment net sales, in fiscal 2009
were consistent with fiscal 2008.
In fiscal 2010, currency exchange rate changes unfavorably impacted
operating income by $540 million. In fiscal 2009, currency exchange
rate changes unfavorably impacted operating income by $266 million.
Volatility in currency exchange rates may continue to impact the
International segment’s operating results in the future.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
Sam’s Club Segment
					
			
% Change from
Operating
Fiscal Year
Net Sales (1)
Prior Fiscal Year
Income (1)

2010
2009
2008

$46,710
46,899
44,336

-0.4%
5.8%
6.6%

$1,512
1,646
1,648

Operating Income
as a Percentage			
of Net Sales
Comp Sales
Unit Counts
3.2%
3.5%
3.7%

-1.4%
4.9%
4.9%

596
602
591

Square
Footage (2 )
79,401
79,906
78,236

(1) Amounts in millions
(2) Amounts in thousands

The decrease in net sales for the Sam’s Club segment in fiscal 2010
primarily resulted from lower fuel prices compared to the previous
fiscal year. In fiscal 2009, the segment net sales growth resulted from
a comparable club sales increase, including fuel, of 4.9% and continued
club expansion activities.

Membership and other income, as a percentage of segment net sales,
decreased slightly for fiscal 2010 when compared to fiscal 2009.
Membership and other income, as a percentage of segment net sales,
decreased slightly for fiscal 2009 when compared to fiscal 2008.

Comparable club sales decreased during fiscal 2010 due to the negative
impact of 2.1 percentage points from lower fuel prices when compared
to the previous fiscal year, partially offset by sales increases in fresh food,
consumables and certain health and wellness categories. In fiscal 2009,
comparable club sales increased due to growth in food, pharmacy, electronics and certain consumables categories, as well as an increase in both
member traffic and average transaction size per member. Fuel sales had
a positive impact of 1.2 percentage points in fiscal 2009 on comparable
club sales.

Cash flows provided by operating activities supply us with a significant
source of liquidity. We use these cash flows, supplemented with long-term
debt and short-term borrowings, to fund our operations and global
expansion activities. Generally, some or all of the remaining free cash
flow funds the dividends on our common stock and share repurchases.

Gross profit margin increased 0.6 percentage points during fiscal 2010
compared to the prior year due to continued strength in sales of consumable, fresh food and other food-related categories. Gross profit margin
increased 0.1 percentage points during fiscal 2009 compared to the prior
year due to strong sales in fresh food and other food-related categories,
consumable categories and the positive impact of a higher fuel gross
profit rate.
Segment operating expenses, as a percentage of segment net sales, increased
0.8 percentage points in fiscal 2010 compared to the prior year due
primarily to a pre-tax charge of $174 million related to the restructuring of Sam’s Club operations, including the closure of 10 clubs. Segment
operating expenses, as a percentage of segment net sales, increased 0.2
percentage points in fiscal 2009 compared to the prior year. In fiscal
2009, operating expense increases were impacted by higher utility and
health benefit costs and hurricane-related expenses.

Cash flows provided by operating activities
supply us with a significant source of liquidity.
We use these cash flows, supplemented with
long-term debt and short-term borrowings,
to fund our operations and global expansion
activities. Generally, some or all of the remaining
free cash flow funds the dividends on our
common stock and share repurchases.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Amounts in millions)

2010

Net cash provided by
operating activities
Payments for property
and equipment

2009

2008

$ 26,249 $ 23,147 $ 20,642
(12,184)

(11,499)

(14,937)

$ 14,065 $ 11,648 $ 5,705

Free cash flow
Net cash used in
investing activities
Net cash used in
financing activities

$(11,620) $(10,742) $(15,670)
$(14,191) $ (9,918) $ (7,422)

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $26.2 billion, $23.1 billion
and $20.6 billion for the years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The increases in cash flows provided by operating activities
for each fiscal year were primarily attributable to an increase in income
from continuing operations and improved working capital management.
Working Capital
Current liabilities exceeded current assets at January 31, 2010, by $7.2
billion, an increase of $789 million from January 31, 2009. Our ratio of
current assets to current liabilities was 0.9 at January 31, 2010 and 2009.
We generally have a working capital deficit due to our efficient use of
cash in funding operations and in providing returns to shareholders in
the form of stock repurchases and payment of dividends.
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Capital Resources
During fiscal 2010, we issued $5.5 billion of long-term debt. The net
proceeds from the issuance of such long-term debt were used for general
corporate purposes. During fiscal 2009, we issued $6.6 billion of long-term
debt. Those net proceeds were used to repay outstanding commercial
paper indebtedness and for other general corporate purposes.
Management believes that cash flows from continuing operations and
proceeds from the issuance of short-term borrowings will be sufficient
to finance seasonal buildups in merchandise inventories and meet other
cash requirements. If our operating cash flows are not sufficient to pay
dividends and to fund our capital expenditures, we anticipate funding
any shortfall in these expenditures with a combination of short-term
borrowings and long-term debt. We plan to refinance existing long-term
debt as it matures and may desire to obtain additional long-term
financing for other corporate purposes. We anticipate no difficulty in
obtaining long-term financing in view of our credit ratings and favorable experiences in the debt market in the recent past. The following table
details the ratings of the credit rating agencies that rated our outstanding
indebtedness at January 31, 2010. The rating agency ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold our commercial paper or debt
securities. Each rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at
any time by the assigning rating organization and should be evaluated
independently of any other rating.

Global Expansion Activities
Cash paid for property and equipment was $12.2 billion, $11.5 billion and
$14.9 billion during the fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively. These expenditures primarily relate to new store
growth, as well as remodeling costs for existing stores.
We expect to incur capital expenditures of approximately $13.0 billion
to $15.0 billion in fiscal 2011. We plan to finance this expansion and any
acquisitions of other operations that we may make during fiscal 2011
primarily from cash flows from operations.
Fiscal 2011 capital expenditures will include the addition of the following
new, relocated and expanded units in the U.S.:
	Fiscal Year 2011
Projected Unit Growth

Walmart U.S. Segment
Sam’s Club Segment

145-160
5-10
150-170

Total U.S.

Additionally, the International segment expects to add more than 600
units during fiscal year 2011.
The following represents an allocation of our capital expenditures:

Rating Agency	Commercial Paper	Long-term Debt

Standard & Poor’s	A-1+	AA
Moody’s Investors Service
P-1	Aa2
Fitch Ratings	F1+	AA
DBRS Limited	R-1(middle)	AA
To monitor our credit ratings and our capacity for long-term financing,
we consider various qualitative and quantitative factors. We monitor the
ratio of our debt to our total capitalization as support for our long-term
financing decisions. At January 31, 2010 and January 31, 2009, the ratio of
our debt to total capitalization was 36.9% and 39.3%, respectively. For
the purpose of this calculation, debt is defined as the sum of short-term
borrowings, long-term debt due within one year, obligations under capital
leases due in one year, long-term debt and long-term obligations under
capital leases. Total capitalization is defined as debt plus total Walmart
shareholders’ equity. Our ratio of debt to our total capitalization decreased
in fiscal 2010 primarily due to a decrease in short-term borrowings.

We expect to incur capital expenditures of
approximately $13.0 billion to $15.0 billion in
fiscal 2011. We plan to finance this expansion
and any acquisitions of other operations that
we may make during fiscal 2011 primarily
from cash flows from operations.
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	Allocation of Capital Expenditures
Projected	Actual
			Fiscal Year
Capital Expenditures
2011

New stores, including
expansions and relocations
Remodels		
Information systems,
distribution and other
Total U.S.
International
Total Capital Expenditures

Fiscal Year	Fiscal Year
2010
2009

31%
15%

29%
17%

34%
10%

21%

23%

20%

67%

69%

64%

33%

31%

36%

100%

100%

100%

Common Stock Dividends
We paid dividends of $1.09 per share in fiscal 2010, representing a
15% increase over fiscal 2009. The fiscal 2009 dividend of $0.95 per
share represented an 8% increase over fiscal 2008. We have increased
our dividend every year since the first dividend was declared in
March 1974.
On March 4, 2010, the company’s Board of Directors approved an
increase in the annual dividend for fiscal 2011 to $1.21 per share, an
increase of 11% over the dividends paid in fiscal 2010. The annual dividend will be paid in four quarterly installments on April 5, 2010, June 1,
2010, September 7, 2010 and January 3, 2011 to holders of record on
March 12, May 14, August 13 and December 10, 2010, respectively.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
Company Share Repurchase Program
From time to time, we have repurchased shares of our common stock
under a $15.0 billion share repurchase program authorized by our Board
of Directors on June 4, 2009 and announced on June 5, 2009, which
replaced and terminated a $15.0 billion share repurchase program
approved by our Board of Directors on May 31, 2007 and announced
on June 1, 2007. As was the case with the replaced share repurchase
program, the new program has no expiration date or other restrictions
limiting the period over which we can make our share repurchases, and
will expire only when and if we have repurchased $15.0 billion of our

shares under the program or we terminate or replace the program. Any
repurchased shares are constructively retired and returned to unissued
status. We spent $7.3 billion, $3.5 billion and $7.7 billion in share repurchases during fiscal year 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We consider
several factors in determining when to execute the share repurchases,
including among other things, our current cash needs, our capacity for
leverage, our cost of borrowings and the market price of our common
stock. As of January 31, 2010, the program had approximately $9.2 billion
remaining authorization for share repurchases.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments
The following table sets forth certain information concerning our obligations and commitments to make contractual future payments, such as
debt and lease agreements, and contingent commitments:
Payments Due During Fiscal Years Ending January 31,
(Amounts in millions)	Total

Recorded contractual obligations:
	Long-term debt
	Short-term borrowings
	Capital lease obligations
Unrecorded contractual obligations:
Non-cancelable operating leases
	Interest on long-term debt
	Trade letters of credit
Purchase obligations
Total commercial commitments
Additionally, the company has approximately $11.2 billion in undrawn
lines of credit and standby letters of credit which, if drawn upon, would
be included in the liabilities section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Purchase obligations include legally binding contracts such as firm
commitments for inventory and utility purchases, as well as commitments
to make capital expenditures, software acquisition/license commitments
and legally binding service contracts. Purchase orders for the purchase of
inventory and other services are not included in the table above. Purchase
orders represent authorizations to purchase rather than binding agreements. For the purposes of this table, contractual obligations for purchase
of goods or services are defined as agreements that are enforceable and
legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or
minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price
provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Our purchase
orders are based on our current inventory needs and are fulfilled by our
suppliers within short time periods. We also enter into contracts for
outsourced services; however, the obligations under these contracts are
not significant and the contracts generally contain clauses allowing for
cancellation without significant penalty.

2011

2012-2013

2014-2015	Thereafter

$37,281
523
5,584

$ 4,050
523
607

$ 6,049
—
1,103

$ 6,899
—
959

$20,283
—
2,915

13,099
29,296
2,370
4,283

1,275
1,762
2,370
2,936

2,318
3,138
—
1,014

2,029
2,697
—
248

7,477
21,699
—
85

$92,436

$13,523

$13,622

$12,832

$52,459

The expected timing for payment of the obligations discussed above
is estimated based on current information. Timing of payments and
actual amounts paid with respect to some unrecorded contractual commitments may be different depending on the timing of receipt of goods
or services or changes to agreed-upon amounts for some obligations.
In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $1.0 billion of
unrecognized tax benefits are considered uncertain tax positions and have
been recorded as liabilities. The timing of the payment associated with
these liabilities is uncertain. Refer to Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion on unrecognized tax benefits.

We paid dividends of $1.09 per share in fiscal
2010, representing a 15% increase over fiscal
2009. The fiscal 2009 dividend of $0.95 per
share represented an 8% increase over fiscal
2008. We have increased our dividend every
year since the first dividend was declared
in March 1974.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
In addition to the unrecorded contractual obligations discussed and
presented above, the company has made certain guarantees as discussed
below for which the timing of payment, if any, is unknown.
In connection with certain debt financing, we could be liable for
early termination payments if certain unlikely events were to occur.
At January 31, 2010, the aggregate termination payment would have
been $109 million. The two arrangements pursuant to which these
payments could be made will expire in fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2019.
In connection with the development of our grocery distribution network
in the United States, we have agreements with third parties which would
require us to purchase or assume the leases on certain unique equipment
in the event the agreements are terminated. These agreements, which
can be terminated by either party at will, cover up to a five-year period
and obligate the company to pay up to approximately $41 million upon
termination of some or all of these agreements.
The company has potential future lease commitments for land and
buildings for approximately 348 future locations. These lease commitments have lease terms ranging from 1 to 40 years and provide for certain
minimum rentals. If executed, payments under operating leases would
increase by $59 million for fiscal 2011, based on current cost estimates.

Market Risk
In addition to the risks inherent in our operations, we are exposed to
certain market risks, including changes in interest rates and changes in
currency exchange rates.
The analysis presented for each of our market risk sensitive instruments
is based on a 10% change in interest or currency exchange rates. These
changes are hypothetical scenarios used to calibrate potential risk and do
not represent our view of future market changes. As the hypothetical
figures discussed below indicate, changes in fair value based on the assumed
change in rates generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship
of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear.
The effect of a variation in a particular assumption is calculated without
changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result
in changes in another, which may magnify or counteract the sensitivities.
At January 31, 2010 and 2009, we had $37.3 billion and $37.2 billion,
respectively, of long-term debt outstanding. Our weighted-average
effective interest rate on long-term debt, after considering the effect
of interest rate swaps, was 4.5% and 4.4% at January 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates in effect at
January 31, 2010 and 2009 would have increased annual interest
expense on borrowings outstanding at those dates by $9 million and
$16 million, respectively.
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At January 31, 2010 and 2009, we had $523 million and $1.5 billion,
respectively, of outstanding commercial paper and short-term borrowing
obligations. The weighted-average interest rate, including fees, on these
obligations at January 31, 2010 and 2009 was 1.8% and 0.9%, respectively.
A hypothetical 10% increase in these rates in effect at January 31, 2010 and
2009 would have increased the annual interest expense for the respective
outstanding balances by $1 million.
We enter into interest rate swaps to minimize the risks and costs associated
with financing activities, as well as to maintain an appropriate mix of
fixed- and floating-rate debt. Our preference is to maintain between 40%
and 60% of our debt portfolio, including interest rate swaps, in floatingrate debt. The swap agreements are contracts to exchange fixed- or
variable-rates for variable- or fixed-interest rate payments periodically
over the life of the instruments. The aggregate fair value of these swaps
represented a gain of $240 million and $304 million at January 31, 2010
and 2009, respectively. A hypothetical increase or decrease of 10% in
interest rates from the level in effect at January 31, 2010, would have
resulted in a loss or gain in value of the swaps of $25 million and
$24 million, respectively. A hypothetical increase or decrease of 10%
in interest rates from the level in effect at January 31, 2009, would
have resulted in a loss or gain in value of the swaps of $17 million.
We hold currency swaps to hedge the currency exchange component of
our net investments in the United Kingdom. In fiscal 2010, we entered
into currency swaps to hedge the currency exchange rate fluctuation
exposure associated with the forecasted payments of principal and interest
of non-U.S. denominated debt. The aggregate fair value of these swaps
at January 31, 2010 and 2009 represented a gain of $475 million and
$526 million, respectively. A hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in
the currency exchange rates underlying these swaps from the market
rate would have resulted in a loss or gain in the value of the swaps of
$58 million and $150 million at January 31, 2010 and January 31, 2009,
respectively. A hypothetical 10% change in interest rates underlying
these swaps from the market rates in effect at January 31, 2010 would
have resulted in a loss or gain in value of the swaps of $11 million and
$30 million, respectively, on the value of the swaps.
In addition to currency swaps, we have designated debt of approximately
£3.0 billion as of January 31, 2010 and 2009, as a hedge of our net
investment in the United Kingdom. At January 31, 2010, a hypothetical
10% increase or decrease in value of the U.S. dollar relative to the British
pound would have resulted in a gain or loss in the value of the debt of
$480 million. At January 31, 2009, a hypothetical 10% increase or decrease
in value of the U.S. dollar relative to the British pound would have
resulted in a gain or loss in the value of the debt of $440 million. In
addition, we have designated debt of approximately ¥437.4 billion as of
January 31, 2010 and 2009, as a hedge of our net investment in Japan.
At January 31, 2010, a hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in value
of the U.S. dollar relative to the Japanese yen would have resulted in a
gain or loss in the value of the debt of $485 million. At January 31, 2009,
a hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Japanese yen would have resulted in a gain or loss in the value
of the debt of $443 million.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations
Summary of Critical Accounting Policies
Management strives to report the financial results of the company in a
clear and understandable manner, although in some cases accounting
and disclosure rules are complex and require us to use technical terminology. In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, we follow
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These
principles require us to make certain estimates and apply judgments
that affect our financial position and results of operations as reflected in
our financial statements. These judgments and estimates are based on
past events and expectations of future outcomes. Actual results may
differ from our estimates.
Management continually reviews our accounting policies, how they are
applied and how they are reported and disclosed in our financial statements.
Following is a summary of our more significant accounting policies and
how they are applied in preparation of the financial statements.
Inventories
We value our inventories at the lower of cost or market as determined
primarily by the retail method of accounting, using the last-in, first-out
(“LIFO”) method for substantially all our Walmart U.S. segment’s merchandise. Sam’s Club merchandise and merchandise in our distribution
warehouses are valued based on weighted-average cost using the LIFO
method. Inventories for international operations are primarily valued
by the retail method of accounting and are stated using the first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”) method.
Under the retail method, inventory is stated at cost, which is determined
by applying a cost-to-retail ratio to each merchandise grouping’s retail
value. The FIFO cost-to-retail ratio is based on the initial margin of
beginning inventory plus the fiscal year purchase activity. The cost-toretail ratio for measuring any LIFO reserves is based on the initial margin
of the fiscal year purchase activity less the impact of any markdowns.
The retail method requires management to make certain judgments and
estimates that may significantly impact the ending inventory valuation
at cost as well as the amount of gross profit recognized. Judgments
made include recording markdowns used to sell through inventory and
shrinkage. When management determines the salability of inventory has
diminished, markdowns for clearance activity and the related cost impact
are recorded at the time the price change decision is made. Factors considered in the determination of markdowns include current and anticipated
demand, customer preferences and age of merchandise, as well as seasonal
and fashion trends. Changes in weather patterns and customer preferences
related to fashion trends could cause material changes in the amount and
timing of markdowns from year to year.
When necessary, the company records a LIFO provision for a quarter for
the estimated annual effect of inflation, and these estimates are adjusted
to actual results determined at year-end. Our LIFO provision is calculated based on inventory levels, markup rates and internally generated
retail price indices. At January 31, 2010 and 2009, our inventories valued
at LIFO approximated those inventories as if they were valued at FIFO.

The company provides for estimated inventory losses (“shrinkage”)
between physical inventory counts on the basis of a percentage of sales.
The provision is adjusted annually to reflect the historical trend of the
actual physical inventory count results.
Impairment of Assets
We evaluate long-lived assets other than goodwill and assets with
indefinite lives for indicators of impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Management’s judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators are based on market conditions and our operational performance,
such as operating income and cash flows. The evaluation for long-lived
assets is performed at the lowest level of identifiable cash flows, which
is generally at the individual store level or, in certain circumstances, at
the market group level. The variability of these factors depends on a
number of conditions, including uncertainty about future events and
changes in demographics. Thus our accounting estimates may change
from period to period. These factors could cause management to conclude that impairment indicators exist and require that impairment tests
be performed, which could result in management determining that the
value of long-lived assets is impaired, resulting in a write-down of the
long-lived assets.
Goodwill and other indefinite-lived acquired intangible assets are not
amortized, but are evaluated for impairment annually or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the value of a certain asset may
be impaired. This evaluation requires management to make judgments
relating to future cash flows, growth rates, and economic and market
conditions. These evaluations are based on determining the fair value
of a reporting unit or asset using a valuation method such as discounted
cash flow or a relative, market-based approach. Historically, the company
has generated sufficient returns to recover the cost of goodwill and other
indefinite-lived acquired intangible assets. Because of the nature of the
factors used in these tests, if different conditions occur in future periods,
future operating results could be materially impacted.
Income Taxes
The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant
judgment, the use of estimates, and the interpretation and application
of complex tax laws. Significant judgment is required in assessing the
timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items and the probability
of sustaining uncertain tax positions. The benefits of uncertain tax
positions are recorded in our financial statements only after determining
a more-likely-than-not probability that the uncertain tax positions will
withstand challenge, if any, from taxing authorities. When facts and
circumstances change, we reassess these probabilities and record any
changes in the financial statements as appropriate. We account for
uncertain tax positions by determining the minimum recognition threshold that a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the
financial statements. This determination requires the use of judgment
in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items.
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Self-Insurance
We use a combination of insurance, self-insured retention and selfinsurance for a number of risks, including, but not limited to, workers’
compensation, general liability, vehicle liability, and the company’s
obligation for employee-related health care benefits. Liabilities associated
with the risks that we retain are estimated by considering historical claims
experience, including frequency, severity, demographic factors and
other actuarial assumptions. In calculating our liability, we analyze our
historical trends, including loss development, and apply appropriate loss
development factors to the incurred costs associated with the claims
made against our self-insured program. The estimated accruals for these
liabilities could be significantly affected if future occurrences or loss
development differ from these assumptions. For example, for our workers’
compensation and general liability accrual, a 1% increase or decrease
to the assumptions for claims costs or loss development factors would
increase or decrease our self-insurance accrual by $26 million.
In fiscal 2008, our actuarially determined ultimate loss estimates were
reduced primarily for our fiscal 2004 through 2007 workers’ compensation and general liability claims. The reductions in ultimate loss estimates
resulted primarily from improved claims handling experience, which
impacts loss development factors and other actuarial assumptions. Due to
the beneficial change in estimate of our ultimate losses, accrued liabilities
for general liability and workers’ compensation claims were reduced by
$298 million, or $196 million after tax, resulting in an increase in net
income per basic and diluted common share of $0.05 for the second
quarter of fiscal year 2008.

Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains statements that Walmart believes are
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended. Those statements are intended
to enjoy the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements
provided by that Act. Those forward-looking statements include statements
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations: under the captions “Company Performance
Metrics – Growth – Net Sales” and “Results of Operations – Consolidated
Results of Operations” with respect to the volatility of currency exchange
rates possibly continuing to affect our International segment’s net sales;
under the caption “Company Performance Metrics – Growth – Comparable
Store Sales” regarding the effect of the opening of new stores on comparable store sales stabilizing over time; under the caption “Liquidity
and Capital Resources – Capital Resources” with respect to our ability
to finance seasonal build-ups in inventories and to meet other cash
requirements with cash flows from operations and short-term borrowings,
our ability to fund certain cash flow shortfalls by short-term borrowings
and long-term debt, our plan to refinance long-term debt as it matures,
our anticipated funding of any shortfall in cash to pay dividends and make
capital expenditures through short-term borrowings and long-term
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debt, our plan to refinance existing long-term debt as it matures, and our
ability to sell our long-term securities; under the caption “Liquidity and
Capital Resources – Global Expansion Activities” with respect to our
capital expenditures in fiscal 2011, how we will finance expansion and
any acquisitions made during fiscal 2011, the anticipated number of new
stores and clubs to be opened in the United States and internationally
and the anticipated allocation of capital expenditures in fiscal 2011;
under the caption “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Common Stock
Dividends,” as well as in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements,
regarding the payment of dividends in fiscal 2011; and under the caption
“Liquidity and Capital Resources – Off Balance Sheet Arrangements” with
respect to the amount of increases in payments under operating leases
if certain leases are executed. These forward-looking statements also
include statements in Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
regarding the possible reduction of U.S. tax liability on accumulated
but undistributed earnings of our non-U.S. subsidiaries, the realization
of certain deferred tax assets, possible reduction of unrecognized tax
benefits, the reasons for such reductions and the magnitude of their
impact on our results of operations and financial condition, the possible
timing of the resolution of certain tax matters and how the resulting tax
items will be recorded, and the possibility that the resolution of certain
non-U.S. federal income tax matters could result in a material liability
for us. In addition, these statements include a statement in the material
entitled “Our Financial Priorities” relating to Walmart continuing to
grow around the world. The letter of our President and Chief Executive
Officer appearing in this Annual Report includes forward-looking
statements that relate to: Walmart continuing to expand into new
channels so customers can shop and experience Walmart when, where
and how they want; Walmart growing operating expenses slower than
sales and operating income faster than sales; Walmart doing even more
to leverage the size, scale, expenses and expertise of the total company;
Walmart continuing to make investments in technology; Walmart
planning to move quickly and being a more innovative company;
Walmart expanding our commitment to inclusion and providing career
opportunities to associates; Walmart building on our leading in sustainability through continued work on its Sustainable Product Index and
new commitment to reduce greenhouse gas emissions; Walmart living
and upholding our culture, showing that we respect individual people,
putting customers first and driving changes need to be an even better
company, and Walmart making the absolute most of our opportunity to
lead as a retailer, as a company and as people. Forward-looking statements
appear elsewhere in this Annual Report: under the caption “Walmart
U.S. – Saving Customers Money So They Can Live Better” and relate to
management’s expectations that growth will come from additional
penetration into more metropolitan markets, as well as new formats
and stronger integration with our online business and for global
sourcing initiatives to strengthen our Walmart U.S. segment’s efforts
to drive down the cost of goods and pass the savings on to customers.
Moreover, forward-looking statements appear under the caption
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“Walmart International – Growing Globally To Serve More Customers” and
relate to management’s expectations for our International segment to
continue an aggressive pace through acquisitions and strong organic
growth and to grow in our International segment’s countries by winning locally. In addition, a forward-looking statement appears under
the caption “Walmart – Helping People Live Better Worldwide” regarding
driving product innovation, increasing supply chain transparency and
creating a single source for product sustainability. The forward-looking
statements described above are identified by the use in such statements
of one or more of the words or phrases “anticipate,” “could reduce,”
“expect,” “grow,” “is expected,” “may be reduced,” “may continue,”
“plan,” “will always put,” “will be,” “will be included,” “will be paid,”
“will be recorded,” “will be resolved,” “will build,” “will come,” “will
continue,” “will do,” “will drive,” “will expand,” “will grow,” “will
live and uphold,” “will show,” “will strengthen,” “would increase,” and
other similar words or phrases. Similarly, descriptions of our objectives,
strategies, plans, goals or targets are also forward-looking statements.
These statements discuss, among other things, expected growth, future
revenues, future cash flows, future capital expenditures, future performance, future initiatives and the anticipation and expectations of Walmart
and its management as to future occurrences and trends.
The forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report and
that we make elsewhere are subject to certain factors, in the United
States and internationally, that could affect our business operations,
financial performance, business strategy, plans, goals and objectives.
Those factors include, but are not limited to: general economic conditions, including the current economic downturn and disruption in the
financial markets, unemployment levels, consumer credit availability,
levels of consumer disposable income, consumer spending patterns and
debt levels, inflation, deflation, the cost of the goods we sell, labor costs,
transportation costs, the cost of diesel fuel, gasoline, natural gas and
electricity, the cost of health care benefits, accident costs, our casualty and
other insurance costs, information security costs, the cost of construction
materials, availability of acceptable building sites for new stores, clubs
and other formats, competitive pressures, accident-related costs, weather
patterns, catastrophic events, storm and other damage to our stores and
distribution centers, climate change, weather-related closing of stores,
availability and transport of goods from domestic and foreign suppliers,
currency exchange fluctuations and volatility, trade restrictions, changes
in tariff and freight rates, adoption of or changes in tax and other laws
and regulations that affect our business, costs of compliance with laws
and regulations, the outcome of legal proceedings to which we are a
party, interest rate fluctuations, changes in employment legislation and
other capital markets, economic and geo-political conditions and events,
including civil unrest and terrorist attacks. Moreover, we typically earn
a disproportionate part of our annual operating income in the fourth
quarter as a result of the seasonal buying patterns. Those buying patterns
are difficult to forecast with certainty. The foregoing list of factors that

may affect our performance is not exclusive. Other factors and unanticipated events could adversely affect our business operations and
financial performance. We discuss certain of these matters more fully,
as well as certain risk factors that may affect our business operations,
financial condition, results of operations and liquidity in other of our
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”),
including our Annual Report on Form 10-K. We filed our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2010, with the
SEC on March 30, 2010. The forward-looking statements described
above are made based on knowledge of our business and the environment in which we operate. However, because of the factors described
and listed above, as well as other factors, or as a result of changes in facts,
assumptions not being realized or other circumstances, actual results may
materially differ from anticipated results described or implied in these
forward-looking statements. We cannot assure the reader that the results
or developments expected or anticipated by us will be realized or, even
if substantially realized, that those results or developments will result
in the expected consequences for us or affect us, our business or our
operations in the way we expect. You are urged to consider all of
these risks, uncertainties and other factors carefully in evaluating the
forward-looking statements and not to place undue reliance on such
forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included
in this Annual Report speak only as of the date of this report, and we
undertake no obligation to update these forward-looking statements to
reflect subsequent events or circumstances, except as may be required
by applicable law.
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Consolidated Statements of Income
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Amounts in millions except per share data) 			

2010

2009

2008

Revenues:
Net sales			
	Membership and other income			

$405,046
3,168

$401,087
3,287

$373,821
3,202

						

408,214

404,374

377,023

Costs and expenses:
	Cost of sales			
	Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses			

304,657
79,607

304,056
77,520

284,137
70,934

Operating income			

23,950

22,798

21,952

Interest:
	Debt				
	Capital leases			
	Interest income			

1,787
278
(181)

1,896
288
(284)

1,863
240
(309)

	Interest, net			

1,884

1,900

1,794

22,066

20,898

20,158

6,564
581

6,897
(8)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes		
Provision for income taxes:
	Current			
	Deferred			

7,643
(504)

						

7,139

7,145

6,889

Income from continuing operations			
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax			

14,927
(79)

13,753
146

13,269
(132)

Consolidated net income			
Less consolidated net income attributable to noncontrolling interest			

14,848
(513)

13,899
(499)

13,137
(406)

Consolidated net income attributable to Walmart			

$ 14,335

$ 13,400

$ 12,731

Basic net income per common share:
Basic income per common share from continuing operations attributable to Walmart
Basic income (loss) per common share from discontinued operations attributable to Walmart		

$    3.73
(0.02)

$    3.36
0.04

$    3.16
(0.03)

$    3.71

$    3.40

$    3.13

$    3.72
(0.02)

$    3.35
0.04

$    3.16
(0.03)

Diluted net income per common share attributable to Walmart			

$    3.70

$    3.39

$    3.13

Weighted-average number of common shares:
Basic				
	Diluted			

3,866
3,877

3,939
3,951

4,066
4,072

Dividends declared per common share			

$    1.09

$    0.95

$    0.88

Basic net income per common share attributable to Walmart			
Diluted net income per common share:
	Diluted income per common share from continuing operations attributable to Walmart		
	Diluted income (loss) per common share from discontinued operations attributable to Walmart		

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
January 31,
(Amounts in millions except per share data)				

2010

2009

$   7,907
4,144
33,160
2,980
140

$   7,275
3,905
34,511
3,063
195

48,331

48,949

22,591
77,452
35,450
2,355

19,852
73,810
29,851
2,307

137,848
(38,304)

125,820
(32,964)

			 Property and equipment, net
Property under capital leases:
Property under capital leases
	Less accumulated amortization

99,544

92,856

5,669
(2,906)

5,341
(2,544)

			 Property under capital leases, net
Goodwill
	Other assets and deferred charges

2,763
16,126
3,942

2,797
15,260
3,567

$170,706

$163,429

$     523
30,451
18,734
1,365
4,050
346
92

$   1,506
28,849
18,112
677
5,848
315
83

			Total current liabilities

55,561

55,390

	Long-term debt
	Long-term obligations under capital leases
	Deferred income taxes and other
	Redeemable noncontrolling interest

33,231
3,170
5,508
307

31,349
3,200
6,014
397

—

—

Assets
Current assets:
	Cash and cash equivalents
	Receivables, net
	Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
	Current assets of discontinued operations
			Total current assets
Property and equipment:
	Land		
Buildings and improvements
	Fixtures and equipment
	Transportation equipment
Property and equipment
	Less accumulated depreciation

			

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
	Short-term borrowings
	Accounts payable
	Accrued liabilities
	Accrued income taxes
	Long-term debt due within one year
	Obligations under capital leases due within one year
	Current liabilities of discontinued operations

Commitments and contingencies
Equity:
Preferred stock ($0.10 par value; 100 shares authorized, none issued)
	Common stock ($0.10 par value; 11,000 shares authorized, 3,786 and 3,925 issued
		 and outstanding at January 31, 2010 and January 31, 2009, respectively)
	Capital in excess of par value
	Retained earnings
	Accumulated other comprehensive loss

378
3,803
66,638
(70)

393
3,920
63,660
(2,688)

			Total Walmart shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest

70,749
2,180

65,285
1,794

			Total equity

72,929

67,079

$170,706

$163,429

			

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
								Accumulated	Total
						Capital in		Other
Walmart
			
Number 	Common	Excess of	Retained	Comprehensive	Shareholders’ Noncontrolling	Total
(Amounts in millions except per share data)
of Shares 	Stock
Par Value	Earnings	Income (Loss)	Equity	Interest	Equity

Balances — February 1, 2007
4,131
$413
$ 2,834
$ 55,818
$  2,508
Consolidated net income				
12,731 		
Other comprehensive income					
1,356
Cash dividends ($0.88 per share) 				
(3,586)		
Purchase of company stock
(166)
(17)
(190)
(7,484)		
Other 		
8
1
384 			
Adoption of accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes				
(160)		

$  61,573
$ 2,160
12,731
406
1,356
8
(3,586)		
(7,691)		
385
(635)

$  63,733
13,137
1,364
(3,586)
(7,691)
(250)

(160)		

(160)

Balances — January 31, 2008
3,973
$397
$3,028
$57,319
$  3,864
Consolidated net income				
13,400 		
Other comprehensive income					
(6,552)
Cash dividends ($0.95 per share) 				
(3,746)		
Purchase of company stock
(61)
(6)
(95)
(3,315)		
Other 			
13
2
987
2 		

$  64,608
$ 1,939
13,400
499
(6,552)
(371)
(3,746)		
(3,416)		
991
(273)

$  66,547
13,899
(6,923)
(3,746)
(3,416)
718

Balances — January 31, 2009
3,925
$393
$3,920
$63,660
$(2,688)
Consolidated net income
(excludes redeemable
noncontrolling interest)				
14,335 		
Other comprehensive income					
2,618
Cash dividends ($1.09 per share) 				
(4,217)		
Purchase of company stock
(145)
(15)
(246)
(7,136)		
Purchase of redeemable
noncontrolling interest			
(288)			
Other 		
6 		
417
(4)		

$65,285

$67,079

Balances — January 31, 2010

$70,749

3,786

$378

$3,803

$66,638

$    (70)

$1,794

14,335
499
2,618
64
(4,217)		
(7,397)		

14,834
2,682
(4,217)
(7,397)

(288)		
413
(177)

(288)
236

$2,180

$72,929

	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
						

2010

2009

2008

$14,848

$13,899

$13,137

Other comprehensive income:			
2,854
(6,860)
		Currency translation (2)
		 Net change in fair values of derivatives
94
(17)
		Minimum pension liability
(220)
(46)

1,226
—
138

6,976

14,501

Less amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interest:			
(513)
(499)
		 Net income (1)
		Currency translation (2)
(110)
371

(406)
(8)

(128)

(414)

$ 6,848

$14,087

Comprehensive Income:
Consolidated net income (1)

Total comprehensive income

Amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interest
Comprehensive income attributable to Walmart
(1) Includes $14 million in fiscal 2010 that is related to the redeemable noncontrolling interest.
(2) Includes $46 million in fiscal 2010 that is related to the redeemable noncontrolling interest.
See accompanying notes.
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17,576

(623)
$16,953

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Amounts in millions)			

Cash flows from operating activities:
	Consolidated net income
	Loss (income) from discontinued operations, net of tax

2010

2009

2008

$ 13,899
(146)

$ 13,137
132

14,927
13,753
	Income from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net cash
		 provided by operating activities:			
			Depreciation and amortization
7,157
6,739
			Deferred income taxes
(504)
581
			Other operating activities
301
769
			Changes in certain assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:			
				Increase in accounts receivable
(297)
(101)
				Decrease (increase) in inventories
2,265
(220)
				Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
1,052
(410)
				Increase in accrued liabilities
1,348
2,036

13,269

26,249

23,147

20,642

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from (payments for) disposal of certain international operations, net
	Investment in international operations, net of cash acquired
	Other investing activities

(12,184)
1,002
—
—
(438)

(11,499)
714
838
(1,576)
781

(14,937)
957
(257)
(1,338)
(95)

Net cash used in investing activities

(11,620)

(10,742)

(15,670)

(1,033)
5,546
(6,033)
(4,217)
(7,276)
(436)
(346)
(396)

(3,745)
6,566
(5,387)
(3,746)
(3,521)
—
(352)
267

2,376
11,167
(8,723)
(3,586)
(7,691)
—
(343)
(622)

(14,191)

(9,918)

(7,422)

194

(781)

252

632
7,275

1,706
5,569

(2,198)
7,767

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (2)

$  7,907

$  7,275

$  5,569

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
	Income tax paid
	Interest paid
	Capital lease obligations incurred

$  7,389
2,141
61

$  6,596
1,787
284

$  6,299
1,622
447

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
	Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings, net
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payment of long-term debt
	Dividends paid
Purchase of company stock
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interest
Payment of capital lease obligations
	Other financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (1)

$ 14,848
79

(1) Includes cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations of $51 million at February 1, 2007.
(2) Includes cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations of $77 million at January 31, 2008.
See accompanying notes.

Walmart 2010 Annual Report 33

6,317
(8)
504
(564)
(775)
865
1,034

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart,” the “company” or “we”) operates
retail stores in various formats around the world and is committed to
saving people money so they can live better. We earn the trust of our
customers every day by providing a broad assortment of quality merchandise and services at every day low prices (“EDLP”) while fostering a
culture that rewards and embraces mutual respect, integrity and diversity.
EDLP is our pricing philosophy under which we price items at a low price
every day so our customers trust that our prices will not change under
frequent promotional activity. Our fiscal year ends on January 31.
Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Investments in which the company has a
20% to 50% voting interest and where the company exercises significant
influence over the investee are accounted for using the equity method.
These investments are immaterial to our company.
The company’s operations in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, China, Costa Rica,
El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, India, Japan, Mexico, Nicaragua and
the United Kingdom are consolidated using a December 31 fiscal yearend, generally due to statutory reporting requirements. There were no
significant intervening events in January 2010 which materially affected
the financial statements. The company’s operations in Canada and Puerto
Rico are consolidated using a January 31 fiscal year-end.
The company consolidates the accounts of certain variable interest entities
where it has been determined that Walmart is the primary beneficiary of
those entities’ operations. The assets, liabilities and results of operations
of these entities are not material to the company.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The company considers investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The majority of payments
due from banks for third-party credit card, debit card and electronic
benefit transactions (“EBT”) process within 24-48 hours, except for
transactions occurring on a Friday, which are generally processed the
following Monday. All credit card, debit card and EBT transactions that
process in less than seven days are classified as cash and cash equivalents.
The amounts due from banks for these transactions classified as cash
totaled $2.6 billion and $2.0 billion at January 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition, cash and cash equivalents includes restricted cash
related to cash collateral holdings from various counterparties as required
by certain derivative and trust agreements of $469 million and $577
million at January 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Receivables
Receivables consist primarily of amounts due from:
• insurance companies resulting from our pharmacy sales;
• banks for customer credit card, debit card and EBT transactions that
take in excess of seven days to process;
• suppliers for marketing or incentive programs;
• consumer financing programs in certain international subsidiaries; and
• real estate transactions.
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We establish a reserve for uncollectible receivables based on historical
trends in collection of past due amounts and write-off history. Our
reserve for uncollectible receivables, which relates primarily to our
consumer financing programs, was $298 million and $188 million at
January 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Inventories
The company values inventories at the lower of cost or market as
determined primarily by the retail method of accounting, using the
last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method for substantially all of the Walmart
U.S. segment’s merchandise inventories. Sam’s Club merchandise and
merchandise in our distribution warehouses are valued based on the
weighted-average cost using the LIFO method. Inventories of International operations are primarily valued by the retail method of accounting,
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. At January 31, 2010 and
2009, our inventories valued at LIFO approximate those inventories as
if they were valued at FIFO.
Capitalized Interest
Interest costs capitalized on construction projects were $85 million,
$88 million and $150 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets are stated at cost. Management reviews long-lived assets
for indicators of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The evaluation is performed at the lowest level of identifiable cash flows, which is
at the individual store level or in certain circumstances a market group of
stores. Undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the related
assets are estimated over the asset’s useful life based on updated projections. If the evaluation indicates that the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable, any potential impairment is measured based
upon the fair value of the related asset or asset group as determined by
an appropriate market appraisal or other valuation technique. Impairment
charges were $429 million, $262 million and $210 million for fiscal years
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and are classified in operating, selling,
general and administrative expenses on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Income. See Note 15 for further information regarding
the impairment charges recorded in fiscal 2010.
Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net
assets acquired, and is allocated to the appropriate segment when acquired.
Other acquired intangible assets are stated at the fair value acquired as
determined by a valuation technique commensurate with the intended
use of the related asset. Goodwill and indefinite-lived other acquired
intangible assets are not amortized; rather they are evaluated for impairment annually during our fourth fiscal quarter, or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the value of the asset may be
impaired. Definite-lived other acquired intangible assets are considered
long-lived assets and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the periods
that expected economic benefits will be provided.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Indefinite-lived other acquired intangible assets are included in other
assets and deferred charges on the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets. These assets are evaluated for impairment based on their fair values
using valuation techniques which are updated annually based on the most
recent variables and assumptions. There were no impairment charges
related to indefinite-lived intangible assets recorded during the fiscal
years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Goodwill is evaluated for impairment by determining the fair value of
the related reporting unit. Fair value is measured based on discounted
cash flow method and relative market-based approaches. The analyses
require significant management judgment to evaluate the capacity of
an acquired business to perform within projections. The company has
never recorded impairment charges related to goodwill.
The following table reflects goodwill activity for fiscal years 2010 and 2009:
(Amounts in millions)	International 	Sam’s Club	Total

February 1, 2008
Currency translation
Acquisitions
Other		

$ 15,574
(2,020)
1,500
(99)

$ 305
—
—
—

$ 15,879
(2,020)
1,500
(99)

January 31, 2009
Currency translation
Other		

$14,955
970
(104)

$305
—
—

$15,260
970
(104)

January 31, 2010

$15,821

$305

$16,126

During fiscal 2010, the International segment’s goodwill balance increased
$970 million related to currency exchange fluctuations. Other goodwill
activity of $104 million includes adjustments made in finalizing the
allocation of the purchase price for Distribución y Servicio (“D&S”).
During fiscal 2009, the International segment’s goodwill balance
decreased $619 million, primarily from the strengthening of the U.S.
dollar against most major currencies, partially offset by goodwill recorded
in connection with the acquisition of a majority interest in D&S and
the purchase of the remaining minority shares of The Seiyu Ltd. These
acquisitions and disposal are discussed in further detail in Note 9.
Leases
The company estimates the expected term of a lease by assuming the
exercise of renewal options where an economic penalty exists that would
preclude the abandonment of the lease at the end of the initial noncancelable term and the exercise of such renewal is at the sole discretion
of the company. This expected term is used in the determination of
whether a store lease is a capital or operating lease and in the calculation
of straight-line rent expense. Additionally, the useful life of leasehold
improvements is limited by the expected lease term or the economic life
of the asset, whichever is shorter. If significant expenditures are made for
leasehold improvements late in the expected term of a lease and renewal
is reasonably assumed, the useful life of the leasehold improvement is
limited to the end of the renewal period or economic life of the asset,
whichever is shorter.

Rent abatements and escalations are considered in the calculation of
minimum lease payments in the company’s capital lease tests and in
determining straight-line rent expense for operating leases.
Currency Translation
The assets and liabilities of all international subsidiaries are translated
from the respective local currency to the U.S. dollar using exchange
rates at the balance sheet date. The income statements of international
subsidiaries are translated from the respective local currency to the U.S.
dollar using average exchange rates for the period. Related translation
adjustments are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Revenue Recognition
The company recognizes sales revenue net of sales taxes and estimated
sales returns at the time it sells merchandise to the customer. Customer
purchases of shopping cards are not recognized as revenue until the
card is redeemed and the customer purchases merchandise by using
the shopping card. The company also recognizes revenue from service
transactions at the time the service is performed. Generally, revenue
from services is classified as a component of net sales on our consolidated
statements of income.
Sam’s Club Membership Fee Revenue Recognition
The company recognizes Sam’s Club membership fee revenue both in
the United States and internationally over the term of the membership,
which is 12 months. The following table details deferred revenue,
membership fees received from members and the amount of revenue
recognized in earnings for each of the fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008.
	Deferred
	Membership
(Amounts in millions)	Fee Revenue

Balance at February 1, 2007
Membership fees received
Membership fee revenue recognized

$   535
1,054
(1,038)

Balance at January 31, 2008
Membership fees received
Membership fee revenue recognized

$   551
1,044
(1,054)

Balance at January 31, 2009
Membership fees received
Membership fee revenue recognized

$   541
1,048
(1,057)

Balance at January 31, 2010			 $   532
Sam’s Club membership fee revenue is included in membership and
other income in the revenues section of the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Income. The deferred membership fee is included in
accrued liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Cost of Sales
Cost of sales includes actual product cost, the cost of transportation to
the company’s warehouses, stores and clubs from suppliers, the cost of
transportation from the company’s warehouses to the stores and clubs
and the cost of warehousing for our Sam’s Club segment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Payments from Suppliers
Walmart receives money from suppliers for various programs, primarily
volume incentives, warehouse allowances and reimbursements for specific programs such as markdowns, margin protection and advertising.
Substantially all payments from suppliers are accounted for as a reduction
of purchases and recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Income
when the related inventory is sold.
Operating, Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses include all
operating costs of the company except those costs related to the transportation of products from the supplier to the warehouses, stores or clubs,
the costs related to the transportation of products from the warehouses
to the stores or clubs and the cost of warehousing for our Sam’s Club
segment. As a result, the cost of warehousing and occupancy for our
Walmart U.S. and International segments’ distribution facilities is
included in operating, selling, general and administrative expenses. Because
we do not include the cost of our Walmart U.S. and International segments’ distribution facilities in cost of sales, our gross profit and gross
profit as a percentage of net sales (our “gross profit margin”) may not be
comparable to those of other retailers that may include all costs related
to their distribution facilities in cost of sales and in the calculation of
gross profit.
Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and were $2.4 billion, $2.1
billion and $1.8 billion in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Advertising costs consist primarily of print, television and digital advertisements. Advertising reimbursements received from suppliers are
generally accounted for as a reduction of purchases and recognized in our
Consolidated Statements of Income when the related inventory is sold.
Pre-Opening Costs
The costs of start-up activities, including organization costs, related
to new store openings, store remodels, expansions and relocations are
expensed as incurred. Pre-opening costs totaled $227 million, $289
million and $353 million for the years ended January 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization for financial statement purposes are
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the various assets. Depreciation expense, including amortization of
property under lease, for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $7.2 billion,
$6.7 billion and $6.3 billion, respectively. For income tax purposes,
accelerated methods of depreciation are used with recognition of deferred
income taxes for the resulting temporary differences. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset or the remaining expected lease term. Estimated useful lives for
financial statement purposes are as follows:
Buildings and improvements
Fixtures and equipment
Transportation equipment
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5–40 years
3–20 years
4–15 years

Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rate is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts more likely
than not to be realized.
The company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting
from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The company records interest and penalties related to unrecognized
tax benefits in interest expense and operating, selling, general and
administrative expenses, respectively, in the company’s Consolidated
Statements of Income.
Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. They also affect the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.
Reclassifications
In connection with the company’s finance transformation project, we
reviewed and adjusted the classification of certain revenue and expense
items within our Consolidated Statements of Income for financial
reporting purposes. The reclassifications did not impact operating
income or consolidated net income attributable to Walmart. The
changes were effective February 1, 2009 and have been reflected in all
periods presented.
Subsequent Events
On March 4, 2010, the company’s Board of Directors approved an
increase in the annual dividend for fiscal 2011 to $1.21 per share, an
increase of 11% over the dividend paid in fiscal 2010. The annual dividend will be paid in four quarterly installments on April 5, 2010, June 1,
2010, September 7, 2010 and January 3, 2011 to holders of record on
March 12, May 14, August 13 and December 10, 2010, respectively.
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2 Accrued Liabilities

For purposes of determining consolidated net income per common share
attributable to Walmart, income from continuing operations attributable
to Walmart and the (loss) gain from discontinued operations, net of tax,
are as follows:

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
January 31,
2010

2009

Accrued wages and benefits
Self-insurance 		
Other 		

$ 5,986
3,224
9,524

$ 5,577
3,108
9,427

Total accrued liabilities 		

$18,734

$18,112

(Amounts in millions)		

Self-Insurance
The company uses a combination of insurance, self-insured retention
and self-insurance for a number of risks, including, but not limited to,
workers’ compensation, general liability, vehicle liability, property and
the company’s obligation for employee-related health care benefits.
Liabilities associated with these risks are estimated by considering historical claims experience, demographic factors, frequency and severity
factors and other actuarial assumptions. In estimating our liability for
such claims, we periodically analyze our historical trends, including loss
development, and apply appropriate loss development factors to the
incurred costs associated with the claims.

	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Amounts in millions)

2009

2010

Income from continuing operations
Less consolidated net
income attributable to
noncontrolling interest
Income from continuing operations
attributable to Walmart
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax
Consolidated net income
attributable to Walmart

2008

$14,927 $13,753 $13,269

(499)

(406)

13,254

12,863

146

(132)

(513)
14,414
(79)

$14,335 $13,400 $12,731

4 Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt
Information on short-term borrowings and interest rates is as follows:

3 Net Income Per Common Share

	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

Basic net income per common share attributable to Walmart is based on
the weighted-average number of outstanding common shares. Diluted
net income per common share attributable to Walmart is based on the
weighted-average number of outstanding common shares adjusted for
the dilutive effect of stock options and other share-based awards. The
dilutive effect of stock options and other share-based awards was 11 million, 12 million and 6 million shares in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The company had approximately 5 million, 6 million and
62 million option shares outstanding at January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, which were not included in the diluted net income per share
calculation because their effect would be antidilutive.

Maximum amount outstanding
at any month-end
Average daily short-term borrowings
Weighted-average interest rate

(Dollar amounts in millions)

2010

2009

2008

$4,536 $7,866 $9,176
1,596
4,520
5,657
0.5%
2.1%
4.9%

Short-term borrowings consist of commercial paper and lines of credit.
Short-term borrowings outstanding at January 31, 2010 and 2009 were
$523 million and $1.5 billion, respectively. The company has certain
lines of credit totaling $9.0 billion, most of which were undrawn as of
January 31, 2010. Of the $9.0 billion in lines of credit, $8.6 billion is
committed with 34 financial institutions. In conjunction with these
lines of credit, the company has agreed to observe certain covenants,
the most restrictive of which relates to maximum amounts of secured
debt and long-term leases. Committed lines of credit are primarily used
to support commercial paper. The portion of committed lines of credit
used to support commercial paper remained undrawn as of January 31,
2010. The committed lines of credit mature at various times starting
between June 2010 and June 2012, carry interest rates in some cases
equal to the company’s one-year credit default swap mid-rate spread
and in other cases LIBOR plus 15 basis points and incur commitment
fees of 4.0 to 10.0 basis points on undrawn amounts.
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The company had trade letters of credit outstanding totaling $2.4 billion
at January 31, 2010 and 2009. At January 31, 2010 and 2009, the company
had standby letters of credit outstanding totaling $2.4 billion and $2.0
billion, respectively. These letters of credit were issued primarily for the
purchase of inventory and self-insurance purposes.

(Amounts in millions)
Fiscal Year		Annual Maturity

Long-term debt consists of:
(Dollar amounts in millions)
			Maturity Date
Interest Rate
by Fiscal Year

January 31,
2010

2009

1.200-10.96%
Notes due 2010
5.250%		
Notes due 2036
0.184-10.880%
Notes due 2011(1)
5.625%		
Notes due 2035
6.500%		
Notes due 2038
0.750-15.27%
Notes due 2014
1.200-4.125%
Notes due 2012
5.750-7.550%
Notes due 2031
4.875-6.200%
Notes due 2039
2.950-6.500%
Notes due 2019(1)
3.750-5.375%
Notes due 2018
3.150-6.630%
Notes due 2016
5.875%		
Notes due 2028
1.600-5.000%
Notes due 2013
6.750%		
Notes due 2024
2.300-3.000%
Notes due 2015
2.000-2.500%
Notes due 2017
4.125%		
Notes due 2020
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2021
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2022
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2023
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2025
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2026
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2027
4.200-5.500%
Notes due 2029
Other (mortgages and
sale/leasebacks)(2)	Due 2011 - 2038

$    —
4,098
3,972
1,598
3,000
3,919
4,481
1,799
3,598
1,769
1,032
766
777
1,363
262
2,704
27
6
6
6
8
16
20
23
1,401

$ 5,656
3,954
2,952
—
3,000
4,822
5,353
1,727
2,954
1,305
1,006
940
772
561
263
575
32
507
7
8
10
17
20
19
12

630

725

Total 			

$37,281

$37,197

(1) N
 otes due in 2011 and 2019 both include $500 million put options. Contains early
termination arrangements totaling $109 million.
(2) Includes adjustments to debt hedged by derivatives.

The company has $1.0 billion in debt with embedded put options. The
holders of one $500 million debt issuance may require the company to
repurchase the debt at par plus accrued interest at any time. One issuance
of money market puttable reset securities in the amount of $500 million
is structured to be remarketed in connection with the annual reset of
the interest rate. If, for any reason, the remarketing of the notes does
not occur at the time of any interest rate reset, the holders of the notes
must sell, and the company must repurchase, the notes at par. All of
these issuances have been classified as long-term debt due within one
year in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Long-term debt is unsecured except for $267 million, which is
collateralized by property with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately $1.2 billion. Annual maturities of long-term debt
during the next f ive years and thereafter are:

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$ 4,050
4,611
1,438
4,150
2,749
20,283

	Total

$37,281

The company has entered into sale/leaseback transactions involving
buildings while retaining title to the underlying land. These transactions were accounted for as financings and are included in long-term
debt and the annual maturities schedules above. The resulting obligations mature as follows during the next five years and thereafter:
(Amounts in millions)
Fiscal Year		Annual Maturity

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$ 10
10
10
7
7
277

	Total

$321

5 Fair Value Measurements
The company records and discloses certain financial and nonfinancial
assets and liabilities at their fair value. The fair value of an asset is the
price at which the asset could be sold in an orderly transaction between
unrelated, knowledgeable and willing parties able to engage in the
transaction. A liability’s fair value is defined as the amount that would
be paid to transfer the liability to a new obligor in a transaction
between such parties, not the amount that would be paid to settle the
liability with the creditor.
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are measured using a threetier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring
fair value. These tiers include:
• Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in
active markets;
• Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets
that are either directly or indirectly observable; and
• Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no
market data exists, therefore requiring the company to develop
our own assumptions.
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The disclosure of fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities that is recorded at cost is as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
Long-term debt: The fair value is based on the company’s current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing arrangements
or, where applicable, quoted market prices. The cost and fair value of our debt as of January 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:
January 31, 2010
(Amounts in millions)		

Cost

Long-term debt		

$37,281

January 31, 2009

Fair Value	Cost	Fair Value

$39,055

$37,197

$37,862

Additionally, as of January 31, 2010 and 2009, the company held certain derivative asset and liability positions that are required to be measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The majority of the company’s derivative instruments relate to interest rate swaps. The fair values of these interest rate
swaps have been measured in accordance with Level 2 inputs of the fair value hierarchy. As of January 31, 2010 and 2009, the notional amounts and
fair values of these interest rate swaps are as follows (asset/(liability)):
(Amounts in millions)

January 31, 2010

Derivative financial instruments designated for hedging:

Notional Amount Fair Value

Receive fixed-rate, pay floating-rate interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency interest rate swaps
designated as net investment hedges (Cross-currency notional amount:
GBP 795 at January 31, 2010 and 2009)
Receive floating-rate, pay fixed-rate interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges

$4,445

		Total

$260

January 31, 2009
Notional Amount	Fair Value

$5,195

$321

1,250
462

526
(17)

1,250
638

189
(20)

2,902

286

—

—

$9,235

$715

$6,907

$830

The fair values above are the estimated amounts the company would receive or pay upon a termination of the agreements relating to such instruments as of the reporting dates.

6 Derivative Financial Instruments
The company uses derivative financial instruments for hedging and
non-trading purposes to manage its exposure to changes in interest and
currency exchange rates, as well as to maintain an appropriate mix of
fixed- and floating-rate debt. Use of derivative financial instruments in
hedging programs subjects the company to certain risks, such as market
and credit risks. Market risk represents the possibility that the value of
the derivative instrument will change. In a hedging relationship, the
change in the value of the derivative is offset to a great extent by the
change in the value of the underlying hedged item. Credit risk related
to derivatives represents the possibility that the counterparty will not
fulfill the terms of the contract. The notional, or contractual, amount
of the company’s derivative financial instruments is used to measure
interest to be paid or received and does not represent the company’s
exposure due to credit risk. Credit risk is monitored through established
approval procedures, including setting concentration limits by counterparty, reviewing credit ratings and requiring collateral (generally cash)
from the counterparty when appropriate.
The company’s transactions are with counterparties rated “A+” or better
by nationally recognized credit rating agencies. In connection with
various derivative agreements with counterparties, the company held
cash collateral from these counterparties of $323 million and $440
million at January 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. It is our policy to

record cash collateral exclusive of any derivative asset, and any collateral
holdings are reflected in our accrued liabilities as amounts due to the
counterparties. Furthermore, as part of the master netting arrangements
with these counterparties, the company is also required to post collateral if the derivative liability position exceeds $150 million. The
company has no outstanding collateral postings and in the event of
providing cash collateral, the company would record the posting as a
receivable exclusive of any derivative liability.
When the company uses derivative financial instruments for purposes of
hedging its exposure to interest and currency exchange rates, the contract
terms of a hedge instrument closely mirror those of the hedged item,
providing a high degree of risk reduction and correlation. Contracts that
are effective at meeting the risk reduction and correlation criteria are
recorded using hedge accounting. If a derivative instrument is a hedge,
depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the
instrument will either be offset against the change in fair value of the
hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through earnings or be
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss until the hedged
item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of an instrument’s
change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings.
Instruments that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting, or
contracts for which the company has not elected hedge accounting,
are valued at fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported in
earnings during the period of change.
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Fair Value Instruments
The company is party to receive fixed-rate, pay floating-rate interest rate
swaps to hedge the fair value of fixed-rate debt. Under certain swap
agreements, the company pays floating-rate interest and receives fixedrate interest payments periodically over the life of the instruments. The
notional amounts are used to measure interest to be paid or received and
do not represent the exposure due to credit loss. The company’s interest
rate swaps that receive fixed-interest rate payments and pay floatinginterest rate payments are designated as fair value hedges. As the specific
terms and notional amounts of the derivative instruments match those of
the instruments being hedged, the derivative instruments were assumed
to be perfectly effective hedges and all changes in fair value of the hedges
were recorded in long-term debt and accumulated other comprehensive
loss on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets with no net
impact on the income statement. These fair value instruments will
mature on various dates ranging from February 2011 to May 2014.
Net Investment Instruments
At January 31, 2010 and 2009, the company is party to cross-currency
interest rate swaps that hedge its net investment in the United Kingdom.
The agreements are contracts to exchange fixed-rate payments in one
currency for fixed-rate payments in another currency. All changes in the
fair value of these instruments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, offsetting the currency translation adjustment that is also
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss. These instruments
will mature on dates ranging from 2029 to March 2034.
The company has approximately £3.0 billion of outstanding debt that
is designated as a hedge of the company’s net investment in the United

Kingdom as of January 31, 2010 and 2009. The company also has outstanding approximately ¥437.4 billion of debt that is designated as a
hedge of the company’s net investment in Japan at January 31, 2010
and 2009. Any translation of non-U.S.-denominated debt is recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive loss, offsetting the currency
translation adjustment that is also recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. These instruments will mature on dates ranging
from January 2011 to January 2039.
Cash Flow Instruments
The company is party to receive floating-rate, pay fixed-rate interest rate
swaps to hedge the interest rate risk of certain non-U.S.-denominated
debt. The swaps are designated as cash flow hedges of interest expense
risk. Changes in the non-U.S. benchmark interest rate result in reclassification of amounts from accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings
to offset the floating-rate interest expense. These cash flow instruments
will mature on dates ranging from August 2013 to August 2014.
The company is also party to receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate
cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge the currency exposure
associated with the forecasted payments of principal and interest of
non-U.S.-denominated debt. The swaps are designated as cash flow
hedges of the currency risk related to payments on the non-U.S.denominated debt. Changes in the currency exchange rate result in
reclassification of amounts from accumulated other comprehensive
loss to earnings to offset the re-measurement (loss) gain on the nonU.S.-denominated debt. These cash flow instruments will mature on
dates ranging from September 2029 to March 2034. Any ineffectiveness
with these instruments is expected to be immaterial.

Financial Statement Presentation
Hedging instruments with an unrealized gain are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in other assets and deferred charges, based on maturity
date. Those instruments with an unrealized loss are recorded in accrued liabilities or deferred income taxes and other, based on maturity date.
As of January 31, 2010 and 2009, our financial instruments were classified as follows in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets:
January 31, 2009

January 31, 2010
					
Net
				
Fair Value Investment Cash Flow 	Fair Value
(Amounts in millions)
Instruments
Hedge
Instruments 	Instruments

Net
Investment 	Cash Flow
Hedge 	Instruments

Balance Sheet Classification:
Other assets and deferred charges

$260

$189

$286

$321

$526

$—

		

$260

$189

$286

$321

$526

$—

Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes and other

$260
—

$ —
—

$ —
20

$321
—

$ —
—

$—
17

		

$260

$ —

$ 20

$321

$ —

$ 17

Total assets

Total liabilities
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7 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the company’s derivative instruments and minimum pension liabilities are
recorded net of the related income tax effects. The following table provides further detail regarding changes in the composition of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:
					Currency	Derivative	Minimum
(Amounts in millions)		Translation	Instruments
Pension Liability	Total

Balances at February 1, 2007		
Currency translation adjustment		
Subsidiary minimum pension liability		

$ 2,875
1,218
—

$   —
—
—

$(367)
—
138

$ 2,508
1,218
138

Balances at February 1, 2008		
Currency translation adjustment		
Net change in fair value of derivatives		
Subsidiary minimum pension liability		

$ 4,093
(6,489)
—
—

$   —
—
(17)
—

$(229)
—
—
(46)

$ 3,864
(6,489)
(17)
(46)

Balances at February 1, 2009		
Currency translation adjustment		
Net change in fair value of derivatives		
Subsidiary minimum pension liability		

$(2,396)
2,744
—
—

$(17)
—
94
—

$(275)
—
—
(220)

$(2,688)
2,744
94
(220)

Balances at January 31, 2010		

$   348

$ 77

$(495)

$   (70)

The currency translation adjustment includes a net translation loss of $545 million, a gain of $1.2 billion and a loss of $9 million at January 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, related to net investment hedges of our operations in the United Kingdom and Japan. For fiscal 2010, we
reclassified $83 million from accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings to offset currency translation losses on the re-measurement of
non-U.S. denominated debt.

8 Income Taxes

Income from Continuing Operations
The components of income from continuing operations before income
taxes are as follows:

A summary of the provision for income taxes is as follows:
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(Amounts in millions)

Current:
U.S. federal
U.S. state and local
	International
Total current tax provision

2010

2009

2008

$5,798
599
1,246

$4,771
564
1,229

$5,145
524
1,228

7,643

6,564

6,897

Deferred:
U.S. federal
U.S. state and local
	International

(449)
78
(133)

614
41
(74)

12
6
(26)

Total deferred tax provision

(504)

581

(8)

$7,145

$6,889

Total provision for income taxes

$7,139

	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
2010

2009

2008

U.S.		
International

$17,652
4,414

$16,239
4,659

$15,820
4,338

Total income from continuing
operations before income taxes

$22,066

$20,898

$20,158

(Amounts in millions)
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Deferred Taxes
The significant components of our deferred tax account balances are
as follows:
January 31,
(Amounts in millions)		

2010

2009

Deferred tax assets:
		Loss and tax credit carryforwards
		Accrued liabilities		
		Equity compensation		
		Other		

$ 2,713
3,141
267
751

$ 1,603
2,548
206
437

Total deferred tax assets 		
Valuation allowance 		
Deferred tax assets, net of
valuation allowance

6,872
(2,167)

4,794
(1,852)

4,705

2,942

Deferred tax liabilities:
		 Property and equipment 		
		Inventories		
		Other 		

4,015
1,120
609

3,257
1,079
211

Total deferred tax liabilities 		

5,744

4,547

Net deferred tax liabilities 		

$ 1,039

$ 1,605

The deferred taxes noted above are classified as follows in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets:
January 31,
(Amounts in millions)		

2010

2009

Balance Sheet Classification:
Assets:
Prepaid expenses and other
Other assets and deferred charges		

$1,386
331

$1,293
202

1,717

1,495

34
2,722

24
3,076

	Asset subtotals		
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities		
Deferred income taxes and other
	Liability subtotals		

2,756

3,100

Net deferred tax liabilities		

$1,039

$1,605
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Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation
A reconciliation of the significant differences between the effective income
tax rate and the federal statutory rate on pretax income is as follows:
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
			

2010

2009

2008

U.S. statutory tax rate
U.S. state income taxes, net of
federal income tax benefit
Income taxes outside the U.S.
Net impact of repatriated
foreign earnings
Other, net

35.0%

35.0%

35.0%

2.0%
-1.6%

1.9%
-1.7%

1.7%
-1.7%

-3.4%
0.4%

-1.1%
0.1%

-0.7%
-0.1%

Effective income tax rate

32.4%

34.2%

34.2%

Unremitted Earnings
United States income taxes have not been provided on accumulated
but undistributed earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries of approximately $13.7 billion and $12.7 billion as of January 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, as the company intends to permanently reinvest these
amounts. However, if any portion were to be distributed, the related
U.S. tax liability may be reduced by foreign income taxes paid on those
earnings. Determination of the unrecognized deferred tax liability
related to these undistributed earnings is not practicable because of the
complexities with its hypothetical calculation.
Net Operating Losses, Tax Credit
Carryforwards and Valuation Allowances
At January 31, 2010, the company had international net operating loss and
capital loss carryforwards totaling approximately $4.6 billion. Of these
carryforwards, approximately $3.0 billion will expire, if not utilized,
in various years through 2020. The remaining carryforwards have no
expiration. At January 31, 2010, the company had foreign tax credit
carryforwards of $1.1 billion, which will expire in various years through
2020 if not utilized.
As of January 31, 2010, the company has provided a valuation allowance
of approximately $2.2 billion on deferred tax assets associated primarily
with net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards from our international operations for which management has determined it is more likely
than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The $315 million
net change in the valuation allowance during fiscal 2010 related to releases
arising from the use of net operating loss carryforwards, increases in
foreign net operating losses arising in fiscal 2010 and fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. Management believes that it is more likely
than not that we will fully realize the remaining domestic and international deferred tax assets.
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Uncertain Tax Positions
As of February 1, 2007, the company adopted a new accounting policy
for recording uncertain tax positions. The benefits of uncertain tax
positions are recorded in our financial statements only after determining a more-likely-than-not probability that the uncertain tax positions
will withstand challenge, if any, from taxing authorities.
As of January 31, 2010 and 2009, the amount of unrecognized tax benefits
related to continuing operations was $1.0 billion, of which, the amount
of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the company’s effective
tax rate is $671 million and $582 million for January 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively.
A reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits from continuing operations
is as follows:
January 31,
(Amounts in millions)		

2010

2009

Beginning balance		
Increases related to prior year
tax positions		
Decreases related to prior year
tax positions		
Increases related to current year
tax positions		
Settlements during the period		
Lapse of statute of limitation		

$1,017

$ 868

129

296

(33)

(34)

246
(340)
—

129
(238)
(4)

Ending balance		

$1,019

$1,017

Unrecognized tax benefits related to continuing operations increased
by approximately $2 million and $149 million for fiscal years 2010 and
2009, respectively.
The company classifies interest and penalties related to uncertain tax
benef its as interest expense and as operating, selling, general and
administrative expenses, respectively. Accrued interest decreased by
$29 million during fiscal 2010 and increased by $47 million during
fiscal 2009. During the fiscal years ended January 31, 2010 and 2009, the
company recorded accrued interest of $231 million and $260 million,
respectively. Accrued penalties totaled $2 million at January 31, 2010
and 2009. There were no changes to accrued penalties during the year.
During the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that tax audit
resolutions could reduce unrecognized tax benefits by between
$350 million and $500 million, either because the tax positions are
sustained on audit or because the company agrees to their disallowance. The company does not expect any change to have a significant
impact on its results of operations or financial position.

At January 31, 2010 and 2009, the company had an unrecognized tax
benefit of $1.7 billion, which is related to an ordinary worthless stock
deduction from the fiscal 2007 disposition of its German operations.
Of this, $63 million was recognized in discontinued operations during
fiscal 2009 following the resolution of a gain contingency on a discontinued
operation sold in fiscal 2004. When effectively settled, any additional
benefit will be recorded in discontinued operations. If some portion of
the ordinary loss is determined to be a capital loss, the resulting deferred
tax asset will be included with the company’s non-current assets of
discontinued operations. The company cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of this matter; however, it is reasonably possible it will be
resolved in the next twelve months.
The company is subject to income tax examinations for its U.S. federal
income taxes generally for the fiscal years 2009 and 2010, with fiscal
years 2004 through 2008 remaining open for a limited number of issues.
The company is also subject to income tax examinations for non-U.S.
income taxes for the tax years 2003 through 2010, and for state and local
income taxes for the fiscal years generally 2006 through 2009 and from
1998 for a limited number of issues.
Non-Income Taxes
Additionally, the company is subject to tax examinations for payroll, value
added, sales-based and other taxes. A number of these examinations are
ongoing and, in certain cases, have resulted in assessments from the
taxing authorities. Where appropriate, the company has made accruals
for these matters which are reflected in the company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements. While these matters are individually immaterial,
a group of related matters, if decided adversely to the company, may
result in a liability material to the company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

9 Acquisitions, Investments and Disposals
Acquisitions and Investments
In February 2007, the company announced the purchase of a 35%
interest in Bounteous Company Limited (“BCL”). BCL operated 101
hypermarkets in 34 cities in China under the Trust-Mart banner. The
purchase price for the 35% interest was $264 million. As additional
consideration, the company paid $376 million to extinguish a thirdparty loan issued to the selling BCL shareholders that is secured by the
pledge of the remaining equity of BCL. Concurrent with its initial
investment in BCL, the company entered into a stockholders’ agreement, which provides the company with voting rights associated with
a portion of the common stock of BCL securing the loan, amounting
to an additional 30% of the aggregate outstanding shares. Pursuant to
the purchase agreement, which was recently amended, the company
is committed to purchase the remaining interest in BCL on or before
November 26, 2010, subject to certain conditions. Under the terms
of the original share purchase agreement, the final purchase price for
the remaining interest will be approximately $320 million, net of loan
repayments and subject to reduction under certain circumstances.
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After closing the acquisition, the company began consolidating BCL
using a December 31 fiscal year-end. The company’s Consolidated
Statements of Income for fiscal 2008 include the results of BCL for the
period commencing upon the acquisition of the company’s interest in
BCL and ending December 31, 2007. BCL’s results of operations were
not material to the company in fiscal 2008. Assets recorded in the
acquisition were approximately $1.6 billion, including approximately
$1.1 billion in goodwill, and liabilities assumed were approximately
$1.0 billion.
In August 2007, Walmart and Bharti Enterprises, an Indian company,
established a joint venture called Bharti Walmart Private Limited to conduct wholesale cash-and-carry and back-end supply chain management
operations in India in compliance with Government of India guidelines.
The first wholesale facility opened in fiscal 2010. The joint venture
supplies merchandise to Bharti Retail, an affiliate of Bharti Enterprises
that is developing a chain of retail stores in India. Bharti Retail has
entered into a franchise agreement with an Indian subsidiary of Walmart
under which such subsidiary provides technical support to Bharti Retail’s
retail business.
In January 2009, the company completed a tender offer for the shares
of D&S, acquiring approximately 58.2% of the outstanding D&S
shares. As of the acquisition date, D&S had 197 stores, 10 shopping
centers and 85 PRESTO financial services branches throughout Chile.
The purchase price for the D&S shares in the offer was approximately
$1.55 billion. As of January 31, 2009, the preliminary allocation of the
purchase price resulted in recording approximately $3.6 billion in
assets, including approximately $1.0 billion in goodwill and liabilities
assumed of approximately $1.7 billion. The noncontrolling interest
was approximately $395 million, all of which was redeemable. The
final purchase price allocation had an insignificant impact to the preliminary assets and liabilities recorded at the time of acquisition. In
March 2009, the company paid $436 million to acquire a portion of
the redeemable noncontrolling interest in D&S through a second
tender offer as required by the Chilean securities laws, increasing its
ownership stake in D&S to 74.6% . This transaction resulted in a
$148 million acquisition of that portion of the redeemable noncontrolling interest and the remaining $288 million is ref lected as a
reduction of Walmart shareholders’ equity. Additionally, the former
D&S controlling shareholders still hold a put option that is exercisable
beginning in January 2011 through January 2016. During the exercise
period, the put option allows each former controlling shareholder the
right to require the company to purchase up to all of their shares of
D&S (approximately 25.1%) owned at fair market value at the time
of an exercise, if any.
On February 15, 2010, our majority-owned subsidiary Wal-Mart de
México (“Walmex”) completed the acquisition of the noncontrolling
interest in our Central American subsidiary that had been held by
third parties. The consideration paid consisted of $111 million in cash
and $2.3 billion in shares in our majority-owned subsidiary Walmex.
The effect of this transaction on the consolidated company will be a
purchase of the outstanding noncontrolling interest of our Central
American business, with the company’s ownership of Walmex now at
approximately 68.5%.
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Disposals
In fiscal 2008, the company recorded a charge of $153 million to
discontinued operations related to the settlement of a post-closing
adjustment and certain other indemnification obligations resulting
from the disposal of its German operations in fiscal 2007.
During fiscal 2009, the company disposed of Gazeley Limited (“Gazeley”),
an ASDA commercial property development subsidiary in the United
Kingdom. Consequently, the results of operations associated with
Gazeley are presented as discontinued operations in our Consolidated
Statements of Income and Consolidated Balance Sheets for all periods
presented. The cash flows related to this operation were insignificant
for all periods presented. In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the company recognized approximately $212 million, after tax, in operating
profits and gains from the sale of Gazeley. The transaction continues
to remain subject to certain indemnification obligations. The company’s
operations in the United Kingdom are consolidated using a December 31
fiscal year-end. Since the sale of Gazeley closed in July 2008, the company recorded the gain to discontinued operations in the third quarter
of fiscal 2009.
During the third quarter of f iscal 2009, the company initiated a
restructuring program under the company’s Japanese subsidiary,
The Seiyu Ltd., to close approximately 23 stores and dispose of certain
excess properties and was substantially completed in fiscal 2010. This
restructuring involved incurring costs associated with lease termination
obligations, asset impairment charges and employee separation benefits.
The costs associated with this restructuring are presented as discontinued operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income and
Consolidated Balance Sheets for all periods presented. The cash flows
and accrued liabilities related to this restructuring were insignificant
for all periods presented. The company recognized approximately
$79 million and $122 million, after tax, in restructuring expenses
and operating results as discontinued operations, for the fiscal years
ended January 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Costs were recorded
for lease termination obligations and employee separation benefits;
additional costs are not expected to be material.
In addition, the company recorded a $63 million benefit to discontinued
operations in f iscal 2009, from the successful resolution of a tax
contingency related to McLane Company, Inc., a former Walmart
subsidiary sold in f iscal 2004.
Net sales related to our discontinued operations were not significant
during fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008. The net income or losses
related to our discontinued operations, including the gain and (losses)
upon disposition, are as follows:
January 31,
(Amounts in millions)

2010

2009

2008

Germany
McLane
Gazeley
Seiyu		
Other		

$—
—
—
(79)
—

$  —
63
212
(122)
(7)

$(153)
—
39
(18)
—

			

$(79)

$ 146

$(132)
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10 Share-Based Compensation Plans
As of January 31, 2010, the company has awarded share-based
compensation to executives and other associates of the company
through various share-based compensation plans. The compensation
cost recognized for all plans was $335 million, $302 million and
$276 million for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and is
included in operating, selling, general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. The total
income tax benefit recognized for all share-based compensation
plans was $126 million, $112 million and $102 million for fiscal
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The company’s Stock Incentive Plan of 2005 (the “Plan”), which is
shareholder-approved, was established to grant stock options, restricted
(non-vested) stock, performance shares and other equity compensation
awards to its associates for which 210 million shares of common stock
to be issued under the Plan have been registered under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended. The company believes that such awards serve
to align the interests of its associates with those of its shareholders.
Under the Plan and prior plans, substantially all stock option awards
have been granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of
the company’s stock at the date of grant. Generally, outstanding options
granted before fiscal 2001 vest over seven years. Options granted after
fiscal 2001 generally vest over five years. Options granted generally have
a contractual term of 10 years.
The company’s United Kingdom subsidiary, ASDA, also offers two other
stock option plans to its colleagues. The first plan, The ASDA Colleague
Share Ownership Plan 1999 (the “CSOP”), grants options to certain
colleagues. The initial CSOP grants have both a three-year and a sixyear vesting with subsequent grants vesting over six years. The CSOP
shares have an exercise period of two months immediately following

the vesting date. The second plan, The ASDA Sharesave Plan 2000
(the “Sharesave Plan”), grants options to certain colleagues at 80% of
the average market value of the three days preceding the date of grant.
Sharesave Plan options become exercisable after three years and generally
expire six months after becoming exercisable. A combined 34 million
shares of common stock were registered under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, for issuance upon the exercise of stock options granted under
the CSOP and the Sharesave Plan.
Stock Options
The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model that uses
various assumptions for inputs, which are noted in the following table.
Generally, the company uses expected volatilities and risk-free interest
rates that correlate with the expected term of the option when estimating an option’s fair value. To determine the expected life of the option,
the company bases its estimates on historical exercise and expiration
activity of grants with similar vesting periods. Expected volatility is
based on historical volatility of our stock. The expected risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of
the grant. The expected dividend yield over the vesting period is
based on the expected dividend yield rate over the life of the grant.
The following table represents the weighted-average assumptions
used by the company to estimate the fair values of the company’s
stock options at the grant dates:
	Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
			

2010

2009

2008

Dividend yield
Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life in years

2.1%
18.7%
1.4%
3.1

1.9%
16.7%
2.0%
3.4

2.1%
18.6%
4.5%
5.6

A summary of the stock option award activity for fiscal 2010 is presented below:
		
Weighted-Average
Weighted-Average	Aggregate
Stock Options	Shares	Exercise Price	Remaining Life in Years	Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at January 31, 2009
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired

48,722,000
1,804,000
(4,833,000)
(3,734,000)

$49.11
40.16
43.94
49.44

Outstanding at January 31, 2010

41,959,000

49.32

4.8

$186,595,000

Exercisable at January 31, 2010

28,441,000

$51.35

3.8

$ 73,432,000

As of January 31, 2010, there was $94 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to stock options granted under the Plan, which
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years.
The total fair value of options vested during the fiscal years ended
January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, was $79 million, $107 million and
$102 million, respectively.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during
the fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, was $10.41,
$9.97 and $11.00, respectively. Stock options granted in fiscal 2010
were primarily issued under the Sharesave Plan. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during the years ended January 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, was $39 million, $173 million and $60 million,
respectively. During fiscal 2010 and 2009, the company received
$111 million and $585 million, respectively, in cash from the exercise
of stock options.
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Restricted Stock Rights
In fiscal 2007, the company began issuing restricted stock rights to most
associates in lieu of stock option awards. Restricted stock rights are
associate rights to company stock after a specified service period. Grants
issued before fiscal 2009 typically vest over five years with 40% vesting
three years from grant date and the remaining 60% vesting five years
from grant date. Beginning in fiscal 2009, the vesting schedule was
adjusted for new grants to 50% vesting three years from grant date and
the remaining 50% vesting five years from grant date. The fair value of
each restricted stock right is determined on the date of grant using the
stock price discounted for the expected dividend yield through the
vesting period and is recognized ratably over the vesting period.
Expected dividend yield over the vesting period is based on the
expected dividend yield rate over the life of the grant. The weightedaverage discount for dividend yield used to determine the fair value of
restricted stock rights granted in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008 was 8.5%,
6.8% and 8.4%, respectively.
A summary of the company’s restricted stock rights activity for fiscal
2010 presented below represents the maximum number of shares that
could be earned or vested under the Plan:
		
Restricted Stock Rights 	Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

Restricted Stock Rights
at January 31, 2009
		 Granted
		 Vested
		 Forfeited

11,154,000
5,061,000
(1,181,000)
(1,010,000)

$46.28
46.34
41.86
46.57

Restricted Stock Rights
at January 31, 2010

14,024,000

$46.50

As of January 31, 2010, there was $335 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to restricted stock rights granted under the
Plan, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 2.1 years.
Restricted Stock and Performance Share Awards
Under the Plan, the company grants various types of awards of restricted
(non-vested) stock to certain associates. These grants include awards for
shares that vest based on the passage of time, performance criteria, or both.
Vesting periods vary. Restricted stock awards granted before January 1,
2008 may be settled in stock, or deferred as stock or cash, based upon the
associate’s election. Consequently, these awards are classified as liabilities
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets unless the associate
has elected for the award to be settled or deferred in stock. Restricted
stock awards issued in fiscal 2009 and later generally are settled or
deferred in stock.
During fiscal 2006, the company began issuing performance share awards
under the Plan that vest based on the passage of time and achievement of
performance criteria. Based on the extent to which the targets are achieved,
vested shares may range from 0% to 150% of the original award amount.
Because the performance shares issued before January 1, 2008 may be
settled in stock or cash, the performance shares are included in accrued
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liabilities and deferred income taxes and other in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets unless the associate has elected for the award
to be settled or deferred in stock. Beginning in fiscal 2009, performance
shares issued are settled or deferred in stock; therefore, they are accounted
for as equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair
value of performance share awards accounted for as equity are determined
on the date of grant using the stock price discounted for the expected
dividend yield through the vesting period and is recognized ratably over
the vesting period.
The fair value of the restricted stock and performance share liabilities
is remeasured each reporting period. The total liability for restricted
stock and performance share awards at January 31, 2010 and 2009 was
$63 million and $126 million, respectively.
A summary of the company’s non-vested restricted stock and performance
share award activity for fiscal 2010 presented below represents the maximum number of shares that could be earned or vested under the Plan:
Non-Vested Restricted Stock		
and Performance Share Awards	Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

Restricted Stock and
Performance Share Awards
at January 31, 2009
		 Granted
		 Vested
		 Forfeited

13,705,000
4,422,000
(2,067,000)
(1,736,000)

$49.28
51.59
48.23
49.03

Restricted Stock and
Performance Share Awards
at January 31, 2010

14,324,000

$50.18

As of January 31, 2010, there was $334 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to restricted stock and performance share
awards granted under the Plan, which is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 2.5 years. The total fair value of
shares vested during the fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, was $110 million, $55 million and $24 million, respectively.

11 Legal Proceedings
The company is involved in a number of legal proceedings. The company
has made accruals with respect to these matters, where appropriate, which
are reflected in the company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. For
some matters, the amount of liability is not probable or the amount
cannot be reasonably estimated and therefore accruals have not been
made. However, where a liability is reasonably possible and material, such
matters have been disclosed. The company may enter into discussions
regarding settlement of these matters, and may enter into settlement
agreements, if it believes settlement is in the best interest of the company’s
shareholders. The matters, or groups of related matters, discussed below,
if decided adversely to or settled by the company, individually or in the
aggregate, may result in liability material to the company’s financial
condition or results of operations.
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Wage-and-Hour Class Actions: The company is a defendant in various
cases containing class-action allegations in which the plaintiffs are current
and former hourly associates who allege that the company committed
wage-and-hour violations by failing to provide rest breaks, meal periods,
or other benefits, or otherwise by failing to pay them correctly. The
complaints generally seek unspecified monetary damages, injunctive
relief, or both. The company cannot reasonably estimate the possible
loss or range of loss that may arise from these lawsuits, except where
the lawsuit has been settled or otherwise as noted below.
In one of the wage-and-hour lawsuits, Braun/Hummel v. Wal-Mart Stores,
Inc., a trial was commenced in September 2006, in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania. The plaintiffs allege that the company failed to pay class
members for all hours worked and prevented class members from taking
their full meal and rest breaks. On October 13, 2006, the jury awarded
back-pay damages to the plaintiffs of approximately $78 million on their
claims for off-the-clock work and missed rest breaks. The jury found
in favor of the company on the plaintiffs’ meal-period claims. On
November 14, 2007, the trial judge entered a final judgment in the
approximate amount of $188 million, which included the jury’s backpay award plus statutory penalties, prejudgment interest and attorneys’
fees. The company believes it has substantial factual and legal defenses
to the claims at issue, and on December 7, 2007, the company filed its
Notice of Appeal.
Exempt Status Cases: The company is a defendant in several cases
in which the plaintiffs seek class or collective certification of various
groups of salaried managers, and challenge their exempt status under
state and federal laws. In one of those cases (Sepulveda v. Wal-Mart Stores,
Inc.), class certification was denied by the trial court on May 5, 2006.
On April 25, 2008, a three-judge panel of the United States Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit affirmed the trial court’s ruling in part
and reversed it in part, and remanded the case for further proceedings.
On May 16, 2008, the company filed a petition seeking review of that
ruling by a larger panel of the court. On October 10, 2008, the court
entered an Order staying all proceedings in the Sepulveda appeal pending the final disposition of the appeal in Dukes v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.,
discussed below. Class certification has not been addressed in the other
cases. The company cannot reasonably estimate the possible loss or range
of loss that may arise from these lawsuits.
Gender Discrimination Cases: The company is a defendant in Dukes v.
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., a class-action lawsuit commenced in June 2001 in
the United States District Court for the Northern District of California.
The case was brought on behalf of all past and present female employees
in all of the company’s retail stores and warehouse clubs in the United
States. The complaint alleges that the company has engaged in a pattern
and practice of discriminating against women in promotions, pay, training and job assignments. The complaint seeks, among other things,
injunctive relief, front pay, back pay, punitive damages and attorneys’
fees. On June 21, 2004, the district court issued an order granting in
part and denying in part the plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. The
class, which was certified by the district court for purposes of liability,
injunctive and declaratory relief, punitive damages and lost pay, subject
to certain exceptions, includes all women employed at any Wal-Mart
domestic retail store at any time since December 26, 1998, who have
been or may be subjected to the pay and management track promotions
policies and practices challenged by the plaintiffs.

The company believes that the district court’s ruling is incorrect. On
August 31, 2004, the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth
Circuit granted the company’s petition for discretionary review of the
ruling. On February 6, 2007, a divided three-judge panel of the court of
appeals issued a decision affirming the district court’s certification order.
On February 20, 2007, the company filed a petition asking that the
decision be reconsidered by a larger panel of the court. On December 11,
2007, the three-judge panel withdrew its opinion of February 6, 2007,
and issued a revised opinion. As a result, the company’s Petition for
Rehearing En Banc was denied as moot. The company filed a new Petition
for Rehearing En Banc on January 8, 2008. On February 13, 2009, the
court of appeals issued an Order granting the Petition. The court heard
oral argument on the Petition on March 24, 2009. If the company is
not successful in its appeal of class certification, or an appellate court
issues a ruling that allows for the certification of a class or classes with a
different size or scope, and if there is a subsequent adverse verdict on
the merits from which there is no successful appeal, or in the event of a
negotiated settlement of the litigation, the resulting liability could be
material to the company’s financial condition or results of operations.
The plaintiffs also seek punitive damages which, if awarded, could result
in the payment of additional amounts material to the company’s financial
condition or results of operations. However, because of the uncertainty
of the outcome of the appeal from the district court’s certification decision,
because of the uncertainty of the balance of the proceedings contemplated by the district court, and because the company’s liability, if any,
arising from the litigation, including the size of any damages award if
plaintiffs are successful in the litigation or any negotiated settlement,
could vary widely, the company cannot reasonably estimate the possible
loss or range of loss that may arise from the litigation.
Since August 2001, the company has been a defendant in a lawsuit that
was filed by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”)
on August 24, 2001, in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Kentucky on behalf of Janice Smith and all other females
who made application or transfer requests at the London, Kentucky,
distribution center from 1998 to the present, and who were not hired
or transferred into the warehouse positions for which they applied. On
February 26, 2010, the company and the EEOC entered into an agreement to settle the case for $12 million, plus related taxes and expenses,
and on March 1, 2010, the court entered an agreed Consent Decree
memorializing the settlement.
Hazardous Materials Investigations: On November 8, 2005, the
company received a grand jury subpoena from the United States Attorney’s
Office for the Central District of California, seeking documents and
information relating to the company’s receipt, transportation, handling,
identification, recycling, treatment, storage and disposal of certain
merchandise that constitutes hazardous materials or hazardous waste.
The company has been informed by the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the
Central District of California that it is a target of a criminal investigation
into potential violations of the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (“RCRA”), the Clean Water Act and the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Statute. This U.S. Attorney’s Office contends, among
other things, that the use of company trucks to transport certain returned
merchandise from the company’s stores to its return centers is prohibited
by RCRA because those materials may be considered hazardous waste.
The government alleges that, to comply with RCRA, the company must
ship from the store certain materials as “hazardous waste” directly to a
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certified disposal facility using a certified hazardous waste carrier. The
company contends that the practice of transporting returned merchandise
to its return centers for subsequent disposition, including disposal by
certified facilities, is compliant with applicable laws and regulations.
While management cannot predict the ultimate outcome of this matter,
management does not believe the outcome will have a material effect
on the company’s financial condition or results of operations.
Additionally, the U.S. Attorney’s Office in the Northern District of
California has initiated its own investigation regarding the company’s
handling of hazardous materials and hazardous waste and the company
has received administrative document requests from the California
Department of Toxic Substances Control requesting documents and
information with respect to two of the company’s distribution facilities.
Further, the company also received a subpoena from the Los Angeles
County District Attorney’s Office for documents and administrative
interrogatories requesting information, among other things, regarding
the company’s handling of materials and hazardous waste. California
state and local government authorities also initiated investigations into
these matters. The company is cooperating fully with the respective
authorities. While management cannot predict the ultimate outcome of
this matter, management does not believe the outcome will have a material
effect on the company’s financial condition or results of operations.

12 Commitments
The company and certain of its subsidiaries have long-term leases for
stores and equipment. Rentals (including amounts applicable to taxes,
insurance, maintenance, other operating expenses and contingent rentals)
under operating leases and other short-term rental arrangements were
$1.8 billion in each of fiscal 2010 and 2009, and $1.6 billion in 2008.
Aggregate minimum annual rentals at January 31, 2010, under noncancelable leases are as follows:
(Amounts in millions)	Operating	Capital
Fiscal Year	Leases	Leases

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$ 1,275
1,212
1,106
1,043
986
7,477

$  607
568
535
504
455
2,915

Total minimum rentals

$13,099

$5,584

Less estimated executory costs 		

50

Net minimum lease payments 		
Less imputed interest at rates
ranging from 3.0% to 12.6% 		

5,534
2,018

Present value of minimum lease payments 		

$3,516

Certain of the company’s leases provide for the payment of contingent
rentals based on a percentage of sales. Such contingent rentals were
immaterial for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008. Substantially all of the
company’s store leases have renewal options, some of which may trigger
an escalation in rentals.
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In connection with certain debt financing, we could be liable for early
termination payments if certain unlikely events were to occur. At
January 31, 2010, the aggregate termination payment would have
been $109 million. The two arrangements pursuant to which these
payments could be made expire in fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2019.
In connection with the development of our grocery distribution
network in the United States, we have agreements with third parties
which would require us to purchase or assume the leases on certain
unique equipment in the event the agreements are terminated. These
agreements, which can be terminated by either party at will, cover up
to a five-year period and obligate the company to pay up to approximately $41 million upon termination of some or all of these agreements.
The company has potential future lease commitments for land and
buildings for approximately 348 future locations. These lease commitments have lease terms ranging from 1 to 40 years and provide for
certain minimum rentals. If executed, payments under operating
leases would increase by $59 million for f iscal 2011, based on
current cost estimates.

13 Retirement-Related Benefits
The company maintains separate Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plans for
associates in the United States and Puerto Rico, under which associates
generally become participants following one year of employment. The
Profit Sharing component of the plan is entirely funded by the company,
and the company makes an additional contribution to the associates’ 401(k)
component of the plan. In addition to the company’s contributions,
associates may elect to contribute a percentage of their earnings to the
401(k) component of the plan. During fiscal 2010, participants could
contribute up to 50% of their pretax earnings, but not more than
statutory limits.
Annual contributions made by the company to the United States
and Puerto Rico Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plans are made at the
sole discretion of the company. Contribution expense associated
with these plans was $1.1 billion, $1.0 billion and $945 million in
fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Employees in international countries who are not U.S. citizens are covered
by various post-employment benefit arrangements. These plans are
administered based upon the legislative and tax requirements in the countries in which they are established. Annual contributions to international
retirement savings and profit sharing plans are made at the discretion of
the company, and were $218 million, $210 million and $267 million in
fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The company’s subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Japan have
defined benefit pension plans. The plan in the United Kingdom was
underfunded by $339 million and $34 million at January 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively. The plan in Japan was underfunded by $249 million
and $289 million at January 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. These
underfunded amounts have been recorded in deferred income taxes
and other in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 31, 2010 and
2009. Certain other international operations have defined benefit
arrangements that are not significant.
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14 Segments
The company is engaged in the operations of retail stores located in all 50 states of the United States, our wholly-owned subsidiaries in Argentina,
Brazil, Canada, Japan, Puerto Rico and the United Kingdom, our majority-owned subsidiaries in Central America, Chile and Mexico and our
joint ventures in China and India and our other controlled subsidiaries in China. The company defines our segments as those business units whose
operating results our chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) regularly reviews to analyze performance and allocate resources. We sell similar
individual products and services in each of our segments. It is impractical to segregate and identify revenue and profits for each of these individual
products and services.
The Walmart U.S. segment includes the company’s mass merchant concept in the United States operating under the “Walmart” or “Wal-Mart”
brand, as well as walmart.com. The International segment consists of the company’s operations outside of the 50 United States. The Sam’s Club
segment includes the warehouse membership clubs in the United States, as well as samsclub.com. The amounts under the caption “Other” in the
table below relating to operating income are unallocated corporate overhead items.
The company measures the results of its segments using, among other measures, each segment’s operating income, which includes certain corporate
overhead allocations. From time to time, we revise the measurement of each segment’s operating income, including any corporate overhead
allocations, as dictated by the information regularly reviewed by our CODM. When we do so, the segment operating income for each segment
affected by the revisions is restated for all periods presented to maintain comparability. Information for our segments and the reconciliation to
consolidated income from continuing operations before income taxes appear in the following table:
(Amounts in millions)
Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010

Walmart U.S.	International	Sam’s Club	Other	Consolidated

Net revenues from external customers
$258,229
$100,107
$46,710
$     —
Operating income (loss)
19,522
5,033
1,512
(2,117)
Interest expense, net 					

$405,046
23,950
(1,884)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes					

$ 22,066

Total assets of continuing operations
Depreciation and amortization

$170,566
$   7,157

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2009

$ 84,480
$   4,206

$ 67,558
$   2,003

$12,073
$   541

$ 6,455
$   407

Walmart U.S.	International	Sam’s Club	Other	Consolidated

Net revenues from external customers
$255,348
$ 98,840
$ 46,899
$      —
Operating income (loss)
18,562
4,940
1,646
(2,350)
Interest expense, net 					

$401,087
22,798
(1,900)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes					

$ 20,898

Total assets of continuing operations
Depreciation and amortization

$163,234
$   6,739

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2008

$ 84,361
$   4,013

$ 59,903
$   1,872

$ 12,339
$    527

$  6,631
$   327

Walmart U.S.	International	Sam’s Club	Other	Consolidated

Net revenues from external customers
$238,915
$ 90,570
$ 44,336
$      —
Operating income (loss)
17,383
4,725
1,648
(1,804)
Interest expense, net 					

$373,821
21,952
(1,794)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 					

$ 20,158

Total assets of continuing operations
Depreciation and amortization

$162,547
$   6,317

$ 84,286
$   3,813

$ 61,994
$   1,684

$ 11,722
$     507

$  4,545
$   313

In the United States, long-lived assets, net, excluding goodwill and other assets and deferred charges were $70.2 billion, $68.0 billion and $66.8
billion as of January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. In the United States, cash additions to long-lived assets were $8.2 billion, $7.5 billion
and $10.4 billion in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Outside of the United States, long-lived assets, net, excluding goodwill and other assets and deferred charges were $32.1 billion, $27.6 billion and
$30.1 billion as of fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Outside of the United States, cash additions to long-lived assets were $4.0 billion in fiscal
2010 and 2009, respectively, and $4.5 billion in fiscal 2008. The International segment includes all real estate outside the United States. The net
revenues and long-lived assets of the company’s ASDA subsidiary are significant to the International segment. ASDA’s net revenues during fiscal
2010, 2009 and 2008 were $31.2 billion, $34.0 billion and $33.4 billion, respectively. Currency exchange rate fluctuations during fiscal 2010 compared
to fiscal 2009 negatively impacted ASDA’s sales in by $5.3 billion. ASDA’s long-lived assets, consisting primarily of property and equipment, net,
totaled $12.2 billion, $10.8 billion and $14.2 billion at January 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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15 Restructuring Charges
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the company announced several
organizational changes, including the closure of 10 Sam’s Clubs, designed
to strengthen and streamline our operations. As a result, we recorded
$260 million in pre-tax restructuring charges as follows:
	Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010
			Asset
(Amounts in millions)	Impairment	Severance	Total

Walmart U.S.
Sam’s Club
Other		

$ —
133
—

$ 73
41
13

$ 73
174
13

	Total

$133

$127

$260

The asset impairment charges generally relate to the real estate of the
Sam’s Club closures, which were written down to their estimated fair
value of $46 million. The fair value was determined based on comparable
market values of similar properties or on a rental income approach, using
Level 2 inputs of the three-tier fair value hierarchy.
The total pre-tax restructuring charge of $260 million is classified in
operating, selling, general and administrative expenses on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. At January 31, 2010, we
had $127 million of severance included in accrued liabilities on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, the majority of which is
expected to be paid by the first quarter of fiscal 2011.

16 Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The company adopts new accounting policies or adjusts existing accounting
policies to comply with new accounting standards promulgated by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) or the SEC. The following subcaptions provide a discussion of the company’s adoption of new
accounting policies as required by new accounting standards that became
effective February 1, 2009 or will become effective in future periods.
Accounting for Acquisitions
The company accounts for all consolidated acquisitions and business
combinations using the purchase method of accounting. As a result
of new accounting standards effective February 1, 2009, the company
changed some of its accounting for business combinations on February 1,
2009. Therefore, certain accounting policies differ when accounting for
acquisitions occurring before and after February 1, 2009, as discussed below.
The company applied the following policies in accounting for business
combinations that occurred prior to February 1, 2009:
• acquisition costs were included as part of the purchase price;
• purchase accounting was applied to only the company’s proportionate
share in the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a partial
acquisition (less than 100% control was acquired);
• goodwill was recorded only to the extent of the company’s proportionate
share in a partial acquired entity;
• contingent consideration, if any, is recorded as additional purchase
price when settled;
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• a djustments to income tax valuation allowances or uncertain tax
positions are recognized as adjustments to the accounting for the
business combination; and
• contingent liabilities acquired were recorded at acquisition if probable
and reasonably estimable.
Subsequent to February 1, 2009, the company applies the following
policies in accounting for business combinations, when applicable:
• costs related to an acquisition are expensed as incurred;
• regardless of the level of ownership acquired, the company records
the full fair value of all assets and liabilities acquired as part of the
purchase price allocation;
• goodwill includes any noncontrolling interest portion and is recorded
as the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the total fair value of
all assets and liabilities acquired and any noncontrolling interest;
• contingent consideration, if any, is included at fair value as part of
the initial purchase price;
• a djustments to income tax valuation allowances or uncertain tax
positions after the acquisition date are generally recognized as
income tax expense; and
• contingent liabilities acquired are recorded at fair value. If fair value is
not determinable, a reasonably estimable amount is recorded, provided
the incurrence of the liability is probable.
No acquisitions have occurred subsequent to February 1, 2009. However,
if any adjustments to income tax valuation allowances and uncertain tax
positions that relate to acquisitions prior to February 1, 2009 occur within
a one-year period from the acquisition date due to revised facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date, then the adjustment
will be recorded to goodwill. Adjustments outside the one-year measurement period are typically recorded to income tax expense.
Noncontrolling Interests
Effective February 1, 2009, the company generally reports noncontrolling
interests in subsidiaries in the equity section of the company’s balance
sheet, rather than in a mezzanine section of the balance sheet between
liabilities and equity. Consolidated net income is also reduced by the
amount attributable to the noncontrolling interest to arrive at net income
attributable to Walmart. Accordingly, the changes have been retroactively
applied in the company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Furthermore, when the company acquires some or all of the noncontrolling
interest, the transaction is accounted for as an equity transaction and
any amount paid in excess of the noncontrolling interest’s cost basis
acquired is recorded to additional paid-in capital.
All noncontrolling interests where the company may be required to
repurchase a portion of the noncontrolling interest under a put option
or other contractual redemption requirement are presented in the
mezzanine section of the balance sheet between liabilities and equity,
as redeemable noncontrolling interest.
Future Accounting Policy Adoptions
A new accounting standard, effective for the first annual reporting period
beginning after November 15, 2009 and for interim periods within that
first annual reporting period, changes the approach to determining the
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and requires
companies to more frequently assess whether they must consolidate
VIEs. The company adopted this new standard on February 1, 2010.
We do not expect the adoption of this new standard to have a material
impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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17 Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarters Ended

(Amounts in millions except per share data)	April 30,

July 31,	October 31, January 31,

Fiscal 2010
Net sales 		
Cost of sales

$93,471 $100,082
70,388
75,153

Gross profit
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

23,083
24,929
24,862
27,515
$ 3,147 $   3,556 $ 3,360 $   4,864
(8)
(7)
(7)
(57)

Consolidated net income
Less consolidated net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

$ 3,139 $   3,549 $ 3,353 $   4,807
(117)
(107)
(114)
(175)

Consolidated net income attributable to Walmart

$ 3,022 $   3,442

Income from continuing operations attributable to Walmart:
Income from continuing operations
Less consolidated net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

$ 3,147 $   3,556 $ 3,360 $   4,864
(117)
(107)
(114)
(175)

$98,667
73,805

$ 3,239

$   4,632

Income from continuing operations attributable to Walmart

$ 3,030 $   3,449

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

$     (8) $      (7) $     (7) $     (57)

Consolidated net income attributable to Walmart

$ 3,022 $   3,442

Basic net income per common share:
Basic income per common share from continuing operations attributable to Walmart
Basic loss per common share from discontinued operations attributable to Walmart

$   0.77 $    0.89 $   0.84
—
(0.01)
—

$    1.23
(0.01)

		

Basic net income per common share attributable to Walmart

$ 3,246

$112,826
85,311

$ 3,239

$   4,689
$   4,632

$   0.77 $    0.88

$   0.84

$    1.22

Diluted net income per common share:
Diluted income per common share from continuing operations attributable to Walmart $   0.77 $    0.88
Diluted loss per common share from discontinued operations attributable to Walmart
—
—

$   0.84
—

$    1.23
(0.02)

		

$   0.77 $    0.88

$   0.84

$    1.21

$94,042
71,372

$101,546
77,118

$97,619
73,621

$107,880
81,945

22,670
3,151
(7)

24,428
3,531
48

23,998
3,146
105

25,935
3,926
—

Diluted net income per common share attributable to Walmart

Fiscal 2009
Net sales 		
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Income from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Consolidated net income
Less consolidated net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

$ 3,144 $   3,579 $ 3,251 $   3,926
(122)
(130)
(113)
(134)

Consolidated net income attributable to Walmart

$ 3,022

Income from continuing operations attributable to Walmart:
Income from continuing operations
Less consolidated net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

$ 3,151 $   3,531 $ 3,146 $   3,926
(122)
(130)
(113)
(134)

Income from continuing operations attributable to Walmart

$ 3,029

$   3,401

$ 3,033

$   3,792

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax

$     (7) $     48

$   105

$     —

Consolidated net income attributable to Walmart

$ 3,022

$   3,449

$ 3,138

$   3,792

Basic net income per common share:
Basic income per common share from continuing operations attributable to Walmart
Basic income (loss) per common share from discontinued operations attributable to Walmart

$   0.77 $    0.86
(0.01)
0.01

$   0.77
0.03

$    0.97
—

		

Basic net income per common share attributable to Walmart

$   3,449

$ 3,138

$   3,792

$   0.76

$    0.87

$   0.80

$    0.97

Diluted net income per common share:
	Diluted income per common share from continuing operations attributable to Walmart
	Diluted income per common share from discontinued operations attributable to Walmart

$   0.76
—

$    0.86
0.01

$   0.77
0.03

$    0.96
—

		Diluted net income per common share attributable to Walmart

$   0.76

$    0.87

$   0.80

$    0.96

The sum of quarterly financial data may not agree to annual amounts due to rounding.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. as of January 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2010. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. at January 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended January 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.
As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, effective
February 1, 2007, the Company changed its method of accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 31,
2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 30, 2010
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Rogers, Arkansas
March 30, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
We have audited Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of January 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included
in the accompanying “Management’s Report to Our Shareholders.”
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2010,
based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. as of January 31, 2010 and 2009,
and related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31,
2010 and our report dated March 30, 2010 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

Rogers, Arkansas
March 30, 2010
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Management’s Report to Our Shareholders
Management of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart”, the “company”
or “we”) is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity
of Walmart’s Consolidated Financial Statements and other financial
information contained in this Annual Report to Shareholders. Those
Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. In preparing those Consolidated Financial Statements, management was required
to make certain estimates and judgments, which are based upon currently
available information and management’s view of current conditions
and circumstances.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which consists solely
of independent directors, oversees our process of reporting financial
information and the audit of our Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Audit Committee stays informed of the financial condition of
Walmart and regularly reviews management’s financial policies and
procedures, the independence of our independent auditors, our internal
control over financial reporting and the objectivity of our financial
reporting. Both the independent auditors and the internal auditors have
free access to the Audit Committee and meet with the Audit Committee
periodically, both with and without management present.
Acting through our Audit Committee, we have retained Ernst & Young
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, to audit our
Consolidated Financial Statements found in this Annual Report to
Shareholders. We have made available to Ernst & Young LLP all of our
financial records and related data in connection with their audit of our
Consolidated Financial Statements. We have filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) the required certifications related
to our Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended
January 31, 2010. These certifications are attached as exhibits to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2010.
Additionally, we have also provided to the New York Stock Exchange
the required annual certification of our Chief Executive Officer regarding our compliance with the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate
governance listing standards.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management has responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Management has assessed the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 31,
2010. In making its assessment, management has utilized the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSO”) of
the Treadway Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework.
Management concluded that based on its assessment, Walmart’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of January 31, 2010. The
company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 31,
2010, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP as stated in their report
which appears in this Annual Report to Shareholders.
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Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be timely disclosed
is accumulated and communicated to management in a timely fashion.
Management has assessed the effectiveness of these disclosure controls and
procedures as of January 31, 2010, and determined they were effective as
of that date to provide reasonable assurance that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, was accumulated and communicated
to management, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure and were effective to provide reasonable assurance
that such information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms.

Report on Ethical Standards
Our company was founded on the belief that open communications
and the highest standards of ethics are necessary to be successful. Our
long-standing “Open Door” communication policy helps management
be aware of and address issues in a timely and effective manner. Through
the Open Door policy all associates are encouraged to inform management at the appropriate level when they are concerned about any matter
pertaining to Walmart.
Walmart has adopted a Statement of Ethics to guide our associates in
the continued observance of high ethical standards such as honesty,
integrity and compliance with the law in the conduct of Walmart’s
business. Familiarity and compliance with the Statement of Ethics is
required of all associates who are part of management. The company
also maintains a separate Code of Ethics for our senior financial officers.
Walmart also has in place a Related-Party Transaction Policy. This policy
applies to Walmart’s senior officers and directors and requires material
related-party transactions to be reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
senior officers and directors are required to report material related-party
transactions to Walmart. We maintain a global ethics office which oversees and administers an ethics helpline. The ethics helpline provides a
channel for associates to make confidential and anonymous complaints
regarding potential violations of our statements of ethics, including
violations related to financial or accounting matters.

Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas M. Schoewe
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Fiscal 2010 End-of-Year Store Count
	Discount		
Neighborhood	Sam’s
Grand
State 	Stores	Supercenters	Markets	Clubs	Total

Alabama
Alaska
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming

5
3
7
12
135
9
28
4
35
7
8
2
50
14
10
7
10
5
6
31
37
12
18
5
20
3
—
3
15
46
3
33
17
1
20
11
14
38
7
5
—
4
40
2
4
15
18
2
22
—

91
5
67
68
41
58
5
5
168
129
—
17
98
86
48
51
74
78
16
13
9
75
43
60
99
10
30
27
12
7
32
59
119
11
124
75
16
88
2
69
12
104
298
34
—
77
31
35
61
10

5
—
22
9
—
—
—
—
27
—
—
—
—
3
—
3
7
6
—
—
—
—
—
1
—
—
—
11
—
—
2
—
—
—
—
17
—
—
—
—
—
6
33
5
—
1
—
—
—
—

United States
totals

803

2,747

158

13
3
15
7
33
15
3
1
43
22
2
1
28
16
8
7
8
12
3
12
2
26
13
7
16
2
3
7
4
10
7
16
22
3
29
8
23
1
9
2
16
72
8
—
16
3
5
12
2

114
11
111
96
209
82
36
10
273
158
10
20
176
119
66
68
99
101
25
56
48
113
74
73
135
15
33
48
31
63
44
108
158
15
173
111
30
149
10
83
14
130
443
49
4
109
52
42
95
12

International
International unit counts and operating formats as of January 31, 2010 (1):

	Super-	Discount	SuperCountry
markets	Stores
centers

Argentina
Brazil (2)
Canada
Chile
China
Costa Rica
El Salvador
Guatemala
Honduras
India
Japan
Mexico (3)
Nicaragua
Puerto Rico
United Kingdom

Hypermarkets	Other	Total

—
157
—
47
—
25
25
28
7
—
259
202
7
30
57

—
—
233
110
—
127
50
113
39
—
—
246
48
7
—

24
45
84
—
167
—
—
—
—
—
—
169
—
8
29

—
65
—
93
104
6
2
7
1
—
111
—
—
—
261

19
167
—
2
8
12
—
16
6
1
1
852
—
11
24

43
434
317
252
279
170
77
164
53
1
371
1,469
55
56
371

International Total 844

973

526

650 1,119

4,112

Grand Total						

8,416

(1) I nternational unit counts, with the exception of Canada and Puerto Rico, are stated
as of December 31, 2009 to correspond with their balance sheet date.
(2) “Other” format includes 23 Sam’s Clubs, 43 cash-n-carry stores, 100 combination
discount and grocery stores and 1 general merchandise store.
(3) “Other” format includes 98 Sam’s Clubs, 308 combination discount and grocery
stores, 86 department stores and 360 restaurants.

596 4,304
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Corporate and Stock Information
Corporate Information

Dividends Payable Per Share

Stock Registrar and Transfer Agent:
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43069
Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069 USA
Worldwide 1-800-438-6278
TDD for hearing-impaired inside the U.S. 1-800-952-9245
Internet: http//www.computershare.com

Fiscal year ended January 31, 2011
April 5, 2010
June 1, 2010
September 7, 2010
January 3, 2011

$0.3025
$0.3025
$0.3025
$0.3025

Dividends Paid Per Share

Listing
New York Stock Exchange
Stock Symbol: WMT

Annual Meeting
Our Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Friday, June 4,
2010, at 7:00 a.m. (Central time) in Bud Walton Arena on the University of
Arkansas campus, Fayetteville, Arkansas.

Communication With Shareholders
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. periodically communicates with shareholders and
other members of the investment community about our operations. For
further information regarding our policy on shareholder and investor communications, refer to our Web site, www.walmartstores.com/investors.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP
5414 Pinnacle Point Dr., Suite 102
Rogers, AR 72758 USA

Fiscal year ended January 31, 2010
April 6, 2009
June 1, 2009
September 8, 2009
January 4, 2010

$0.2725
$0.2725
$0.2725
$0.2725

Fiscal year ended January 31, 2009
April 7, 2008
June 2, 2008
September 2, 2008
January 2, 2009

$0.2375
$0.2375
$0.2375
$0.2375

Stock Performance Chart
This graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on
Walmart’s common stock during the five fiscal years ending with fiscal
2010 to the cumulative total returns on the S&P 500 Retailing Index and
the S&P 500 Index. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on February 1, 2005 in shares of our common stock and in each of the indices
shown and assumes that all dividends were reinvested.
Comparison of 5-Year Cumulative Total Return*
WMT

S&P 500 Index

2006

2007

S&P 500 Retailing Index

Dollars

$140
$120
$100
$ 80
$ 60
$ 40
$ 20

Market Price of Common Stock

0

Fiscal years ended January 31,

2005

2008

2009

Fiscal Years

2010
			

2009

High	Low

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

$54.57
51.75
52.56
55.20

$46.25
47.35
48.73
49.52

$59.04
59.95
63.85
59.23

$47.84
55.05
47.40
46.92

Fiscal year ended January 31,
		
					

1st Quarter*			
*Through March 19, 2010
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Assumes $100 invested on February 1, 2005.
Assumes dividends reinvested.
Fiscal year ending January 31, 2010.

High	Low

2011
High	Low

$56.05

$52.77

Shareholders
As of March 26, 2010, there were 292,983 holders of record of
Walmart’s common stock.

2010

Designed and produced by Corporate Reports Inc./Atlanta   www.corporatereport.com

The following reports are available without charge upon request by writing the
company c/o Investor Relations or by calling 479-273-6463. These reports
are also available via the corporate Web site.
• Annual Report on Form 10-K
• Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
• Earnings Releases
• Current Reports on Form 8-K
• Copy of Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Proxy Statement
• Supplier Standards Report
• Sustainability Report

Among Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., S&P 500 Index and S&P 500 Retailing Index

Online Reports Drive Sustainability Commitments

Financial Highlights
Fiscal Year Ended January 31,
(In billions, except per share data)

Net sales(1)

2010
$405.0

Net sales increase

1.0%

Operating income

2009
$401.1
7.3%

$373.8
8.4%

2007
$344.8
11.6%

2006
$308.9
9.8%

(1)

$ 24.0

$ 22.8

$ 22.0

$ 20.5

$ 18.7

(1)

$ 3.72

$ 3.35

$ 3.16

$ 2.92

$ 2.72

$ 1.09

$ 0.95

$ 0.88

$ 0.67

$ 0.60

Earnings per share

Dividend per share

(2)

(1)

Additional details can be found in the footnotes of the Five-Year Financial Summary.

(2)

Annual dividend declared for fiscal year 2011 is $1.21.

Fiscal Year Ended January 31,
(In billions)

ROI(1)
ROA

2010
19.3%
8.9%

2009
19.3%
8.4%

Free cash flow(1)

$14.1

$11.6

Net cash provided by operating activities

$26.2

$23.1

(1)

2008

 OI and free cash flow are non-GAAP measures, which are shown with their closest GAAP
R
measures, ROA and net cash provided by operating activities, respectively. The reconciliations and
other information regarding these non-GAAP measures can be found in the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this Annual Report.

Business Description:
Walmart was built on the foundation of saving people money so they can live better. This mission has allowed the
company to grow to more than 8,400 stores in 15 countries around the world. The culture and values instilled by company

Our shareholders can continue to help Walmart become a more

The Walmart 2010 Sustainability Progress Report is

sustainable company by registering to receive Annual Shareholders’

also now available online at walmartstores.com/sustainability.

Meeting materials and other company information electronically.

The 2010 Report is a condensed update to our 2009 Global

In the past two years, we have cut the paper usage for the Annual

Sustainability Report, which we issue every other year. We

Report and proxy by 50 percent. Help us save even more by visit-

encourage you to learn more about our sustainability commit-

ing walmartstores.com/investors to register for electronic delivery.

ments and progress, which are an integral part of our mission to

Please also consider voting your shares electronically. Instructions

save people money so they can live better.

are included in your shareholders’ package.

The minimized environmental footprint of this report is the result
of an extensive, collaborative effort of Walmart and its supply chain
partners. The environmental and social impact was a consideration
from the very inception of the project. It is printed on FSC-certified
responsibly forested paper containing recycled PCW fiber that is
Elementally Chlorine Free (ECF). It is printed using 100% renewable wind power (RECs), along with environmental manufacturing principles that were utilized in the printing process. These
practices include environmentally responsible procurement, lean
manufacturing, green chemistry principles, the recycling of
residual materials and reduced VOC inks and coatings.

founder Sam Walton come alive daily, as Walmart’s 2 million associates serve more than 200 million customers and

Total environmental savings impact

Savings baselines were developed using the national averages of similar
coated papers and printing practices by EarthColor Printing.
0.92 acre of forestland preserved via managed forestry
517 fewer trees consumed via recycling
1 05,034 kWh less energy – the same used by
5 homes for a year
5 60 metric tons of greenhouse gas offset – the
equivalent of taking 112 cars off the road for a year
188,805 fewer gallons of water consumed
1 5,679 kWh converted to clean renewable sources
(printing plant using RECs)

members each week.

Rainforest Alliance CertifiedTM
SmartWood Program Labeling Guidelines

2010 Annual Report

Save Money. Live Better.
Walmart U.S.: 3,708 Units

Sam’s Club: $46.7 billion in net sales

Sam’s Club: 596 U.S. Clubs

Walmart International: $100.1 billion in net sales

Walmart International: 4,112 Units
Argentina: 43
Brazil: 434
Canada: 317
Chile: 252
China: 279
Costa Rica: 170
El Salvador: 77
Guatemala: 164
Honduras: 53
India: 1
Japan: 371
Mexico: 1,469
Nicaragua: 55
Puerto Rico: 56*
United Kingdom: 371

Worldwide total: $405 billion in net sales

Sales for the year ended January 31, 2010

Unit count as of January 31, 2010
* Effective February 1, 2010, Walmart stores
and Sam’s Clubs in Puerto Rico became a
part of their respective U.S. segments.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
702 S.W. 8th Street
Bentonville, Arkansas 72716 USA
479-273-4000
walmartstores.com
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Total Units Worldwide: 8,416

We save people money
so they can live better.

Walmart

Walmart U.S.: $258.2 billion in net sales

